



SENATE JOURNAL

STATE OF ILLINOIS

**ONE HUNDRED THIRD GENERAL
ASSEMBLY**

29TH LEGISLATIVE DAY

FRIDAY, MARCH 24, 2023

10:17 O'CLOCK A.M.

SENATE
Daily Journal Index
29th Legislative Day

Action	Page(s)
Celebration of Life Resolution Consent Calendar	62
Introduction of Senate Bill No. 2554	62
Introduction of Senate Bill No. 2555	5
Legislative Measure Filed	5
Legislative Measures Filed	64
Messages from the House	5
Presentation of Senate Resolution No. 151	5
Presentation of Senate Resolution No. 152	11
Presentation of Senate Resolution No. 153	62
Reports Received	5

Bill Number	Legislative Action	Page(s)
SB 0049	Third Reading	45
SB 0057	Third Reading	45
SB 0058	Third Reading	46
SB 0074	Third Reading	46
SB 0086	Third Reading	47
SB 0125	Second Reading	12
SB 0724	Third Reading	47
SB 0759	Third Reading	48
SB 1065	Third Reading	48
SB 1360	Third Reading	49
SB 1438	Second Reading	13
SB 1478	Third Reading	49
SB 1485	Third Reading	50
SB 1499	Second Reading	13
SB 1534	Third Reading	50
SB 1543	Third Reading	51
SB 1558	Third Reading	51
SB 1570	Third Reading	52
SB 1611	Third Reading	52
SB 1673	Third Reading	53
SB 1699	Second Reading	13
SB 1748	Third Reading	53
SB 1782	Second Reading	25
SB 1883	Third Reading	54
SB 1924	Third Reading	55
SB 1977	Second Reading	61
SB 1987	Second Reading	14
SB 2014	Third Reading	55
SB 2034	Third Reading	56
SB 2059	Third Reading	56
SB 2132	Second Reading	23
SB 2192	Third Reading	57
SB 2197	Third Reading	57
SB 2226	Second Reading	23
SB 2227	Second Reading	25
SB 2243	Third Reading	58
SB 2260	Second Reading	23

SB 2264	Third Reading	58
SB 2285	Second Reading	25
SB 2356	Third Reading	59
SB 2374	Third Reading	59
SB 2391	Third Reading	60
SB 2406	Third Reading	60
SB 2426	Third Reading	61
SR 0084	Adopted.....	62
SR 0089	Adopted.....	62
SR 0152	Committee on Assignments.....	11
HB 1156	First Reading.....	8
HB 1213	First Reading.....	8
HB 1236	First Reading.....	8
HB 1268	First Reading.....	8
HB 1273	First Reading.....	8
HB 1286	First Reading.....	9
HB 1291	First Reading.....	9
HB 1294	First Reading.....	9
HB 1297	First Reading.....	9
HB 1363	First Reading.....	9
HB 1434	First Reading.....	9
HB 1465	First Reading.....	9
HB 1496	First Reading.....	9
HB 1497	First Reading.....	9
HB 1541	First Reading.....	9
HB 1555	First Reading.....	9
HB 1557	First Reading.....	9
HB 1561	First Reading.....	9
HB 1565	First Reading.....	9
HB 1581	First Reading.....	9
HB 1602	First Reading.....	9
HB 1612	First Reading.....	9
HB 1626	First Reading.....	9
HB 1628	First Reading.....	10
HB 2057	First Reading.....	10
HB 2072	First Reading.....	10
HB 2077	First Reading.....	10
HB 2094	First Reading.....	10
HB 2098	First Reading.....	10
HB 2104	First Reading.....	10
HB 2123	First Reading.....	10
HB 2131	First Reading.....	10
HB 2147	First Reading.....	10
HB 2188	First Reading.....	10
HB 2189	First Reading.....	10
HB 2207	First Reading.....	11
HB 2224	First Reading.....	10
HB 2301	First Reading.....	10
HB 2308	First Reading.....	10
HB 2477	First Reading.....	10
HB 2878	First Reading.....	10
HB 3087	First Reading.....	10
HB 3133	First Reading.....	11
HB 3149	First Reading.....	11
HB 3162	First Reading.....	11

HB 3311	First Reading.....	11
HB 3551	First Reading.....	11

The Senate met pursuant to adjournment.
Senator Omar Aquino, Chicago, Illinois, presiding.
Prayer by Reverend James Sporleder, Hillside Church of Faith, Effingham, Illinois.
Senator Johnson led the Senate in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Senator Hunter moved that reading and approval of the Journal of Thursday, March 23, 2023, be postponed, pending arrival of the printed Journal.
The motion prevailed.

REPORTS RECEIVED

The Secretary placed before the Senate the following reports:

Reporting Requirement of 50 ILCS 707/20 (Law Enforcement Camera Grant Act), submitted by the LeRoy Police Department.

ISBE ERJA Report - March 2023, submitted by the Illinois State Board of Education.

Reporting Requirement of 50 ILCS 707/15 (Law Enforcement Camera Grant Act), submitted by the Lee County Sheriff's Office.

LEGISLATIVE MEASURE FILED

The following Floor amendment to the Senate Bill listed below has been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 125

PRESENTATION OF CELEBRATION OF LIFE RESOLUTION

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 151

Offered by Senator Pacione-Zayas and all Senators:
Mourns the death of Ruben Olivares of Chicago.

By unanimous consent, the foregoing resolution was referred to the Resolutions Consent Calendar.

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

SENATE BILL NO. 2555. Introduced by Senator Harmon, a bill for AN ACT concerning appropriations.

The bill was taken up, read by title a first time, ordered printed and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

A message from the House by

Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed bills of the following titles, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1213

A bill for AN ACT concerning education.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1236

A bill for AN ACT concerning local government.

[March 24, 2023]

HOUSE BILL NO. 1268
 A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1273
 A bill for AN ACT concerning education.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1286
 A bill for AN ACT concerning health.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1291
 A bill for AN ACT concerning education.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1294
 A bill for AN ACT concerning courts.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1297
 A bill for AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2233
 A bill for AN ACT concerning education.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2878
 A bill for AN ACT concerning finance.
 Passed the House, March 23, 2023.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

The foregoing **House Bills Numbered 1213, 1236, 1268, 1273, 1286, 1291, 1294, 1297, 2233 and 2878** were taken up, ordered printed and placed on first reading.

A message from the House by
Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed bills of the following titles, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1363
 A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1409
 A bill for AN ACT concerning finance.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1434
 A bill for AN ACT concerning courts.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1496
 A bill for AN ACT concerning criminal law.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1497
 A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 3149
 A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 3162
 A bill for AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 3551
 A bill for AN ACT concerning finance.
 Passed the House, March 23, 2023.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

The foregoing **House Bills Numbered 1363, 1409, 1434, 1496, 1497, 3149, 3162 and 3551** were taken up, ordered printed and placed on first reading.

A message from the House by
Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed bills of the following titles, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1465
 A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1628
 A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.

[March 24, 2023]

HOUSE BILL NO. 1635
 A bill for AN ACT concerning property.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1636
 A bill for AN ACT concerning finances.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2057
 A bill for AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2072
 A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2077
 A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2094
 A bill for AN ACT concerning business.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2098
 A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2104
 A bill for AN ACT concerning education.
 Passed the House, March 23, 2023.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

The foregoing **House Bills Numbered 1465, 1628, 1635, 1636, 2057, 2072, 2077, 2094, 2098 and 2104** were taken up, ordered printed and placed on first reading.

A message from the House by
 Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed bills of the following titles, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1541
 A bill for AN ACT concerning utilities.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1555
 A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1557
 A bill for AN ACT concerning liquor.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1561
 A bill for AN ACT concerning education.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1565
 A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1566
 A bill for AN ACT concerning finance.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1581
 A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1602
 A bill for AN ACT concerning local government.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1612
 A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1626
 A bill for AN ACT concerning local government.
 Passed the House, March 23, 2023.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

The foregoing **House Bills Numbered 1541, 1555, 1557, 1561, 1565, 1566, 1581, 1602, 1612 and 1626** were taken up, ordered printed and placed on first reading.

A message from the House by
 Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed bills of the following titles, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

[March 24, 2023]

HOUSE BILL NO. 2040
A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2123
A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2131
A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2147
A bill for AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2188
A bill for AN ACT concerning the fraud.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2189
A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2207
A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2217
A bill for AN ACT concerning safety.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2224
A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
HOUSE BILL NO. 2258
A bill for AN ACT concerning safety.
Passed the House, March 23, 2023.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

The foregoing **House Bills Numbered 2040, 2123, 2131, 2147, 2188, 2189, 2207, 2217, 2224 and 2258** were taken up, ordered printed and placed on first reading.

A message from the House by
Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed a bill of the following title, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 2477
A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.
Passed the House, March 23, 2023.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

The foregoing **House Bill No. 2477** was taken up, ordered printed and placed on first reading.

READING BILLS FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES A FIRST TIME

House Bill No. 1156, sponsored by Senator Tracy, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1213, sponsored by Senator S. Turner, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1236, sponsored by Senator Stadelman, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1268, sponsored by Senator Johnson, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1273, sponsored by Senator E. Harriss, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

[March 24, 2023]

House Bill No. 1286, sponsored by Senator Villanueva, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1291, sponsored by Senator Loughran Cappel, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1294, sponsored by Senator Pacione-Zayas, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1297, sponsored by Senator E. Harriss, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1363, sponsored by Senator Villa, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1434, sponsored by Senator Fowler, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1465, sponsored by Senator Curran, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1496, sponsored by Senator Peters, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1497, sponsored by Senator Cervantes, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1541, sponsored by Senator Hunter, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1555, sponsored by Senator Halpin, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1557, sponsored by Senator Villa, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1561, sponsored by Senator Johnson, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1565, sponsored by Senator Loughran Cappel, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1581, sponsored by Senator Villivalam, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1602, sponsored by Senator Castro, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1612, sponsored by Senator Peters, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1626, sponsored by Senator Villivalam, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 1628, sponsored by Senator Villivalam, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2057, sponsored by Senator Martwick, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2072, sponsored by Senator Fine, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2077, sponsored by Senator McClure, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2094, sponsored by Senator Lewis, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2098, sponsored by Senator Preston, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2104, sponsored by Senator Villivalam, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2123, sponsored by Senator Edly-Allen, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2131, sponsored by Senator Simmons, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2147, sponsored by Senator Villivalam, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2188, sponsored by Senator Joyce, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2189, sponsored by Senator Murphy, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2224, sponsored by Senator Feigenholtz, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2301, sponsored by Senator Ellman, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2308, sponsored by Senator Ellman, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2477, sponsored by Senator Feigenholtz, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2878, sponsored by Senator D. Turner, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 3087, sponsored by Senator D. Turner, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 3133, sponsored by Senator Villanueva, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 3149, sponsored by Senator Villivalam, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 3162, sponsored by Senator Cunningham, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 3311, sponsored by Senator Bennett, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 3551, sponsored by Senator Belt, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

House Bill No. 2207, sponsored by Senator Cervantes, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION

Senator Halpin offered the following Senate Resolution, which was referred to the Committee on Assignments:

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 152

WHEREAS, The U.S. Congress created Amtrak under the Rail Passenger Service Act of 1970 (Public Law 91–158), and Amtrak began serving customers on May 1, 1971, taking over the operation of most intercity passenger trains in exchange for access to the national rail network; and

WHEREAS, Congress passed the Amtrak Improvement Act of 1973 (Public Law 93–146), which gives intercity and commuter rail passenger transportation preference over freight transportation in using a rail line, junction, or crossing, a right codified as section 24308(c) of title 49, United States Code; and

WHEREAS, U.S.C. Sec. 24308(c) of Title 49 states, "Except in an emergency, intercity and commuter rail passenger transportation provided by or for Amtrak has preference over freight transportation in using a rail line, junction, or crossing unless the [Surface Transportation] Board orders otherwise under this subsection. A rail carrier affected by this subsection may apply to the Board for relief. If the Board, after an opportunity for a hearing under section 553 of title 5, decides that preference for intercity and commuter rail passenger transportation materially will lessen the quality of freight transportation provided to shippers, the Board shall establish the rights of the carrier and Amtrak on reasonable terms"; and

WHEREAS, Many host railroads have ignored the law by refusing to give passenger rail the priority to which it is statutorily entitled, resulting in poor and declining on-time performance by Amtrak on most host railroads; according to Amtrak during fiscal year 2019 alone, this caused 6.5 million customers on state-supported and long-distance trains to arrive at their destination late; and

WHEREAS, Amtrak's Office of Inspector General, in a 2019 report, showed poor on-time performance wastes taxpayer dollars to the extent that a mere five percent improvement on all Amtrak routes would result in \$12.1 million in cost savings to Amtrak in the first year; if on-time performance on long-distance routes reached 75 percent for a year, Amtrak would realize an estimated \$41.9 million in operating cost savings along with a one-time savings of \$336 million due to a reduction in equipment replacement needs; and

[March 24, 2023]

WHEREAS, On-time passenger rail performance on host railroads has historically been driven by the existence of an effective means to enforce Amtrak's preference rights as shown historically by:

(1) Enactment of the Passenger Rail Investment and Improvement Act (PRIIA) of 2008 (division B of Public Law 110-432), which included provisions for the enforcement of these preference rights:

(a) Two months afterward, the on-time performance of long-distance trains improved from 56 percent to 77 percent and Class I freight train interference delays across all routes declined by 40 percent; and

(b) One year after enactment of PRIIA, freight train interference delays had declined by 54 percent, and the on-time performance of long-distance trains reached 85 percent; and

(2) Removal in 2014 of some of those provisions after being ruled unconstitutional by a Washington, D.C., Circuit Court: long-distance train on-time performance declined from 72 percent to 50 percent, and freight train interference delays increased 59 percent; and

WHEREAS, As a result of violations of Amtrak's right to preference, Amtrak has been consistently unable on host railroad networks to meet its Congressionally-mandated mission and goals and does not have an effective mechanism to enforce its statutory preference right in order to fulfill its mission and goals; and

WHEREAS, Only the United States Attorney General can bring a civil action for equitable relief in a district court of the United States to enforce Amtrak's preference rights but has done so just once in Amtrak's entire history, against the Southern Pacific Transportation Company in 1979; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, BY THE SENATE OF THE ONE HUNDRED THIRD GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, that we support a strong intercity passenger rail network and support the passage of legislation designed to provide Amtrak with the ability to enforce its preference rights, similar to the previously proposed "Rail Passenger Fairness Act", providing Amtrak the ability to enforce its preference rights by bringing a civil action before a federal district court (the so-called "private right of action"); and be it further

RESOLVED, That we urge the Illinois Congressional Delegation to support the passage of legislation designed to provide Amtrak the ability to enforce its preference rights; and be it further

RESOLVED, That suitable copies of this resolution be delivered to each member of the Illinois Congressional Delegation.

READING BILLS OF THE SENATE A SECOND TIME

On motion of Senator Ventura, **Senate Bill No. 125** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Senate Special Committee on Criminal Law and Public Safety, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 125

AMENDMENT NO. 1 . Amend Senate Bill 125 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Vehicle Code is amended by changing Sections 11-502.1 and 11-502.15 as follows:

(625 ILCS 5/11-502.1)

Sec. 11-502.1. Possession of medical cannabis in a motor vehicle.

(a) No driver, who is a medical cannabis cardholder, may use medical cannabis within the passenger area of any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State.

(b) No driver, who is a medical cannabis cardholder, a medical cannabis designated caregiver, medical cannabis cultivation center agent, or dispensing organization agent may possess medical cannabis within

any area of any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State except in a secured, sealed or resealable, ~~odor-proof~~, and child-resistant ~~medical cannabis~~ container that is inaccessible.

(c) No passenger, who is a medical cannabis card holder, a medical cannabis designated caregiver, or medical cannabis dispensing organization agent may possess medical cannabis within any passenger area of any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State except in a secured, sealed or resealable, ~~odor-proof~~, and child-resistant ~~medical cannabis~~ container that is inaccessible.

(d) Any person who violates subsections (a) through (c) of this Section:

(1) commits a Class A misdemeanor;

(2) shall be subject to revocation of his or her medical cannabis card for a period of 2 years from the end of the sentence imposed; and

(3) shall be subject to revocation of his or her status as a medical cannabis caregiver, medical cannabis cultivation center agent, or medical cannabis dispensing organization agent for a period of 2 years from the end of the sentence imposed.

(Source: P.A. 101-27, eff. 6-25-19; 102-98, eff. 7-15-21; 102-558, eff. 8-20-21.)

(625 ILCS 5/11-502.15)

Sec. 11-502.15. Possession of adult use cannabis in a motor vehicle.

(a) No driver may use cannabis within the passenger area of any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State.

(b) No driver may possess cannabis within any area of any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State except in a secured, sealed or resealable, ~~odor-proof~~, child-resistant ~~cannabis~~ container that is inaccessible.

(c) No passenger may possess cannabis within any passenger area of any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State except in a secured, sealed or resealable, ~~odor-proof~~, child-resistant ~~cannabis~~ container that is inaccessible.

(d) Any person who knowingly violates subsection (a), (b), or (c) of this Section commits a Class A misdemeanor.

(e) The odor of burnt or raw cannabis in a motor vehicle by itself shall not constitute probable cause for the search of a motor vehicle, vehicle operator, or passengers in the vehicle.

(Source: P.A. 101-27, eff. 6-25-19; 102-98, eff. 7-15-21.)"

Committee Amendment No. 2 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

Floor Amendment No. 3 was referred to the Committee on Assignments earlier today.

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Ventura, **Senate Bill No. 1438** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Villa, **Senate Bill No. 1499** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Committee Amendment No. 1 was held in the Senate Special Committee on Criminal Law and Public Safety.

There being no further amendments, the bill was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Villivalam, **Senate Bill No. 1699** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Licensed Activities, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 1699

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1699 as follows:

on page 1, line 5, by replacing "Section" with "Sections 8.7 and"; and

on page 1, immediately below line 5, by inserting the following:

"(225 ILCS 90/8.7 new)

Sec. 8.7. Criminal history records background check. Each applicant for licensure under Sections 8, 8.1, and 11 shall have his or her fingerprints submitted to the Illinois State Police in an electronic format that complies with the form and manner for requesting and furnishing criminal history record information as prescribed by the Illinois State Police. These fingerprints shall be checked against the Illinois State Police and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history record databases now and hereafter filed. The Illinois State Police shall charge applicants a fee for conducting the criminal history records check, which shall be deposited into the State Police Services Fund and shall not exceed the actual cost of the records check. The Illinois State Police shall furnish, pursuant to positive identification, records of Illinois convictions to the Department. The Department may require applicants to pay a separate fingerprinting fee, either to the Department or to a vendor designated or approved by the Department. The Department, in its discretion, may allow an applicant or licensee who does not have reasonable access to a designated vendor to provide his or her fingerprints in an alternative manner. Communication between the Department and an interstate compact governing body or other entities may not include information received from the Federal Bureau of Investigation relating to a State and federal criminal history records check. The Department may adopt any rules necessary to implement this Section."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Morrison, **Senate Bill No. 1987** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Senator Morrison offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 1987

AMENDMENT NO. 1 . Amend Senate Bill 1987 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Controlled Substances Act is amended by changing Section 204 as follows:
(720 ILCS 570/204) (from Ch. 56 1/2, par. 1204)

Sec. 204. (a) The controlled substances listed in this Section are included in Schedule I.

(b) Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following opiates, including their isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers, whenever the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers and salts is possible within the specific chemical designation:

(1) Acetylmethadol;

(1.1) Acetyl-alpha-methylfentanyl

(N-[1-(1-methyl-2-phenethyl)-4-piperidiny]-N-phenylacetamide);

(2) Allylprodine;

(3) Alphacetylmethadol, except levo-alphacetylmethadol (also known as levo-alpha-acetylmethadol, levomethadyl acetate, or LAAM);

(4) Alphameprodine;

(5) Alphamethadol;

(6) Alpha-methylfentanyl

(N-(1-alpha-methyl-beta-phenyl) ethyl-4-piperidyl) propionanilide; 1-(1-methyl-2-phenylethyl)-4-(N-propanilido) piperidine;

(6.1) Alpha-methylthiofentanyl

(N-[1-methyl-2-(2-thienyl)ethyl-4-piperidiny]-N-phenylpropanamide);

(7) 1-methyl-4-phenyl-4-propionoxypiperidine (MPPP);

(7.1) PEPAP

(1-(2-phenethyl)-4-phenyl-4-acetoxypiperidine);

(8) Benzethidine;

(9) Betacetylmethadol;

- (9.1) Beta-hydroxyfentanyl
 (N-[1-(2-hydroxy-2-phenethyl)-4-piperidiny]-N-phenylpropanamide);
- (10) Betameprodine;
 (11) Betamethadol;
 (12) Betaprodine;
 (13) Clonitazene;
 (14) Dextromoramide;
 (15) Diampromide;
 (16) Diethylthiambutene;
 (17) Difenoxy;
 (18) Dimenoxadol;
 (19) Dimepheptanol;
 (20) Dimethylthiambutene;
 (21) Dioxaphetylbutyrate;
 (22) Dipipanone;
 (23) Ethylmethylthiambutene;
 (24) Etonitazene;
 (25) Etoxidine;
 (26) Furethidine;
 (27) Hydroxypethidine;
 (28) Ketobemidone;
 (29) Levomoramide;
 (30) Levophenacymorphan;
 (31) 3-Methylfentanyl
 (N-[3-methyl-1-(2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidyl]-N-phenylpropanamide);
- (31.1) 3-Methylthiofentanyl
 (N-[(3-methyl-1-(2-thienyl)ethyl)-4-piperidiny]-N-phenylpropanamide);
- (32) Morpheridine;
 (33) Noracymethadol;
 (34) Norlevorphanol;
 (35) Normethadone;
 (36) Norpipanone;
 (36.1) Para-fluorofentanyl
 (N-(4-fluorophenyl)-N-[1-(2-phenethyl)-4-piperidiny]propanamide);
- (37) Phenadoxone;
 (38) Phenampromide;
 (39) Phenomorphan;
 (40) Phenoperidine;
 (41) Piritramide;
 (42) Proheptazine;
 (43) Properidine;
 (44) Propiram;
 (45) Racemoramide;
 (45.1) Thiofentanyl
 (N-phenyl-N-[1-(2-thienyl)ethyl]-4-piperidiny]-propanamide);
- (46) Tilidine;
 (47) Trimeperidine;
 (48) Beta-hydroxy-3-methylfentanyl (other name:
 N-[1-(2-hydroxy-2-phenethyl)-3-methyl-4-piperidiny]-N-phenylpropanamide);
- (49) Furanyl fentanyl (FU-F);

- (50) Butyryl fentanyl;
- (51) Valeryl fentanyl;
- (52) Acetyl fentanyl;
- (53) Beta-hydroxy-thiofentanyl;
- (54) 3,4-dichloro-N-[2-(dimethylamino)cyclohexyl]-N-methylbenzamide (U-47700);
- (55) 4-chloro-N-[1-[2-(4-nitrophenyl)ethyl]-2-piperidinylidene]-benzenesulfonamide (W-18);
- (56) 4-chloro-N-[1-(2-phenylethyl)-2-piperidinylidene]-benzenesulfonamide (W-15);
- (57) acrylfentanyl (acryloylfentanyl).

(c) Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following opium derivatives, its salts, isomers and salts of isomers, whenever the existence of such salts, isomers and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation:

- (1) Acetorphine;
- (2) Acetyldihydrocodeine;
- (3) Benzylmorphine;
- (4) Codeine methylbromide;
- (5) Codeine-N-Oxide;
- (6) Cyprenorphine;
- (7) Desomorphine;
- (8) Diacetyldihydromorphine (Dihydroheroin);
- (9) Dihydromorphine;
- (10) Drotebanol;
- (11) Etorphine (except hydrochloride salt);
- (12) Heroin;
- (13) Hydromorphinol;
- (14) Methyl-desorphine;
- (15) Methyl-dihydromorphine;
- (16) Morphine methylbromide;
- (17) Morphine methylsulfonate;
- (18) Morphine-N-Oxide;
- (19) Myrophine;
- (20) Nicocodeine;
- (21) Nicomorphine;
- (22) Normorphine;
- (23) Pholcodine;
- (24) Thebacon.

(d) Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following hallucinogenic substances, or which contains any of its salts, isomers and salts of isomers, whenever the existence of such salts, isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation (for the purposes of this paragraph only, the term "isomer" includes the optical, position and geometric isomers):

- (1) 3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine (alpha-methyl,3,4-methylenedioxyphenethylamine, methylenedioxyamphetamine, MDA);
 - (1.1) Alpha-ethyltryptamine (some trade or other names: eryptamine; MONASE; alpha-ethyl-1H-indole-3-ethanamine; 3-(2-aminobutyl)indole; a-ET; and AET);
 - (2) 3,4-methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA);
 - (2.1) 3,4-methylenedioxy-N-ethylamphetamine (also known as: N-ethyl-alpha-methyl-

- 3,4(methylenedioxy) Phenethylamine, N-ethyl MDA, MDE, and MDEA);
- (2.2) N-Benzylpiperazine (BZP);
 - (2.2-1) Trifluoromethylphenylpiperazine (TFMPP);
 - (3) 3-methoxy-4,5-methylenedioxyamphetamine, (MMDA);
 - (4) 3,4,5-trimethoxyamphetamine (TMA);
 - (5) (Blank);
 - (6) Diethyltryptamine (DET);
 - (7) Dimethyltryptamine (DMT);
 - (7.1) 5-Methoxy-diallyltryptamine;
 - (8) 4-methyl-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine (DOM, STP);
 - (9) Ibogaine (some trade and other names: 7-ethyl-6,6,β,7,8,9,10,12,13-octahydro-2-methoxy-6,9-methano-5H-pyrido [1',2':1,2] azepino [5,4-b] indole; Tabernanthe iboga);
 - (10) Lysergic acid diethylamide;
 - (10.1) Salvinorin A;
 - (10.5) *Salvia divinorum* (meaning all parts of the plant presently classified botanically as *Salvia divinorum*, whether growing or not, the seeds thereof, any extract from any part of that plant, and every compound, manufacture, salts, isomers, and salts of isomers whenever the existence of such salts, isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation, derivative, mixture, or preparation of that plant, its seeds or extracts);
 - (11) 3,4,5-trimethoxyphenethylamine (Mescaline);
 - (12) Peyote (meaning all parts of the plant presently classified botanically as *Lophophora williamsii* Lemaire, whether growing or not, the seeds thereof, any extract from any part of that plant, and every compound, manufacture, salts, derivative, mixture, or preparation of that plant, its seeds or extracts);
 - (13) N-ethyl-3-piperidyl benzilate (JB 318);
 - (14) N-methyl-3-piperidyl benzilate;
 - (14.1) N-hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine (also known as N-hydroxy-α-methyl-3,4(methylenedioxy)phenethylamine and N-hydroxy MDA);
 - (15) Parahexyl; some trade or other names: 3-hexyl-1-hydroxy-7,8,9,10-tetrahydro-6,6,9-trimethyl-6H-dibenzo (b,d) pyran; Synhexyl;
 - (16) Psilocybin;
 - (17) Psilocyn;
 - (18) Alpha-methyltryptamine (AMT);
 - (19) 2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine (2,5-dimethoxy-α-methylphenethylamine; 2,5-DMA);
 - (20) 4-bromo-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine (4-bromo-2,5-dimethoxy-α-methylphenethylamine; 4-bromo-2,5-DMA);
 - (20.1) 4-Bromo-2,5 dimethoxyphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2-(4-bromo-2,5-dimethoxyphenyl)-1-aminoethane; alpha-desmethyl DOB, 2CB, Nexus;
 - (21) 4-methoxyamphetamine (4-methoxy-α-methylphenethylamine; paramethoxyamphetamine; PMA);
 - (22) (Blank);
 - (23) Ethylamine analog of phencyclidine. Some trade or other names: N-ethyl-1-phenylcyclohexylamine, (1-phenylcyclohexyl) ethylamine, N-(1-phenylcyclohexyl) ethylamine, cyclohexamine, PCE;

- (24) Pyrrolidine analog of phencyclidine. Some trade or other names: 1-(1-phenylcyclohexyl) pyrrolidine, PCPy, PHP;
- (25) 5-methoxy-3,4-methylenedioxy-amphetamine;
- (26) 2,5-dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine
(another name: DOET);
- (27) 1-[1-(2-thienyl)cyclohexyl] pyrrolidine
(another name: TCPy);
- (28) (Blank);
- (29) Thiophene analog of phencyclidine (some trade or other names: 1-[1-(2-thienyl)-cyclohexyl]-piperidine; 2-thienyl analog of phencyclidine; TCPy; TCP);
- (29.1) Benzothiophene analog of phencyclidine. Some trade or other names: BTCP or benocyclidine;
- (29.2) 3-Methoxyphencyclidine (3-MeO-PCP);
- (30) Bufotenine (some trade or other names: 3-(Beta-Dimethylaminoethyl)-5-hydroxyindole; 3-(2-dimethylaminoethyl)-5-indolol; 5-hydroxy-N,N-dimethyltryptamine; N,N-dimethylserotonin; mappine);
- (31) (Blank);
- (32) (Blank);
- (33) (Blank);
- (34) (Blank);
- (34.5) (Blank);
- (35) (6aR,10aR)-9-(hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7,10,10a-tetrahydrobenzo[c]chromen-1-ol
Some trade or other names: HU-210;
- (35.5) (6aS,10aS)-9-(hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7,10,10a-tetrahydrobenzo[c]chromen-1-ol, its isomers, salts, and salts of isomers; Some trade or other names: HU-210, Dexanabinol;
- (36) Dexanabinol, (6aS,10aS)-9-(hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7,10,10a-tetrahydrobenzo[c]chromen-1-ol
Some trade or other names: HU-211;
- (37) (Blank);
- (38) (Blank);
- (39) (Blank);
- (40) (Blank);
- (41) (Blank);
- (42) Any compound structurally derived from 3-(1-naphthyl)indole or 1H-indol-3-yl-(1-naphthyl)methane by substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidiny)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl whether or not further substituted in the indole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted in the naphthyl ring to any extent. Examples of this structural class include, but are not limited to, JWH-018, AM-2201, JWH-175, JWH-184, and JWH-185;
- (43) Any compound structurally derived from 3-(1-naphthyl)pyrrole by substitution at the nitrogen atom of the pyrrole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidiny)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted in the pyrrole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted in the naphthyl ring to any extent. Examples of this structural class include, but are not limited to, JWH-030, JWH-145, JWH-146, JWH-307, and JWH-368;

(44) Any compound structurally derived from 1-(1-naphthylmethyl)indene by substitution at the 3-position of the indene ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl whether or not further substituted in the indene ring to any extent, whether or not substituted in the naphthyl ring to any extent. Examples of this structural class include, but are not limited to, JWH-176;

(45) Any compound structurally derived from 3-phenylacetylindole by substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring with alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted in the indole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted in the phenyl ring to any extent. Examples of this structural class include, but are not limited to, JWH-167, JWH-250, JWH-251, and RCS-8;

(46) Any compound structurally derived from 2-(3-hydroxycyclohexyl)phenol by substitution at the 5-position of the phenolic ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not substituted in the cyclohexyl ring to any extent. Examples of this structural class include, but are not limited to, CP 47, 497 and its C8 homologue (cannabicyclohexanol);

(46.1) Any compound structurally derived from 3-(benzoyl) indole with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by an alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl group whether or not further substituted in the indole ring to any extent and whether or not substituted in the phenyl ring to any extent. Examples of this structural class include, but are not limited to, AM-630, AM-2233, AM-694, Pravadoline (WIN 48,098), and RCS-4;

(47) (Blank);

(48) (Blank);

(49) (Blank);

(50) (Blank);

(51) (Blank);

(52) (Blank);

(53) 2,5-Dimethoxy-4-(n)-propylthio-phenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-T-7;

(53.1) 4-ethyl-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-E;

(53.2) 2,5-dimethoxy-4-methylphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-D;

(53.3) 4-chloro-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-C;

(53.4) 4-iodo-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-I;

(53.5) 4-ethylthio-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-T-2;

(53.6) 2,5-dimethoxy-4-isopropylthio-phenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-T-4;

(53.7) 2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-H;

(53.8) 2,5-dimethoxy-4-nitrophenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-N;

(53.9) 2,5-dimethoxy-4-(n)-propylphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-P;

(53.10) 2,5-dimethoxy-3,4-dimethylphenethylamine. Some trade or other names: 2C-G;

(53.11) The N-(2-methoxybenzyl) derivative of any 2C phenethylamine referred to in subparagraphs (20.1), (53), (53.1), (53.2), (53.3), (53.4), (53.5), (53.6), (53.7), (53.8), (53.9), and (53.10) including, but not limited to, 25I-NBOMe and 25C-NBOMe;

(54) 5-Methoxy-N,N-diisopropyltryptamine;

(55) (Blank);

(56) (Blank);

(57) (Blank);

(58) (Blank);

(59) 3-cyclopropoylindole with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the cyclopropyl ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, XLR11, UR144, FUB-144;

(60) 3-adamantoylindole with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on

the indole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the adamantyl ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, AB-001;

(61) N-(adamantyl)-indole-3-carboxamide with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the adamantyl ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, APICA/2NE-1, STS-135;

(62) N-(adamantyl)-indazole-3-carboxamide with substitution at a nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the adamantyl ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, AKB48, 5F-AKB48;

(63) 1H-indole-3-carboxylic acid 8-quinolinyl ester with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the quinoline ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, PB22, 5F-PB22, FUB-PB-22;

(64) 3-(1-naphthyl)indazole with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the naphthyl ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, THJ-018, THJ-2201;

(65) 2-(1-naphthyl)benzimidazole with substitution at the nitrogen atom of the benzimidazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the benzimidazole ring to any extent, whether or not substituted on the naphthyl ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, FUBIMINA;

(66) N-(1-amino-3-methyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, AB-PINACA, AB-FUBINACA, AB-CHMINACA;

(67) N-(1-amino-3,3-dimethyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, ADB-PINACA, ADB-FUBINACA;

(68) N-(1-amino-3,3-dimethyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1H-indole-3-carboxamide with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, ADBICA, 5F-ADBICA;

(69) N-(1-amino-3-methyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1H-indole-3-carboxamide with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, ABICA, 5F-ABICA;

(70) Methyl 2-(1H-indazole-3-carboxamido)-3-methylbutanoate with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, AMB, 5F-AMB;

(71) Methyl 2-(1H-indazole-3-carboxamido)-3,3-dimethylbutanoate with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, 5-fluoro-MDMB-PINACA, MDMB-FUBINACA;

(72) Methyl 2-(1H-indole-3-carboxamido)-3-methylbutanoate with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, MMB018, MMB2201, and AMB-CHMICA;

(73) Methyl 2-(1H-indole-3-carboxamido)-3,3-dimethylbutanoate with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, MDMB-CHMICA;

(74) N-(1-Amino-1-oxo-3-phenylpropan-2-yl)-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indazole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, APP-CHMINACA, 5-fluoro-APP-PINACA;

(75) N-(1-Amino-1-oxo-3-phenylpropan-2-yl)-1H-indole-3-carboxamide with substitution on the nitrogen atom of the indole ring by alkyl, haloalkyl, alkenyl, cycloalkylmethyl, cycloalkylethyl, aryl halide, alkyl aryl halide, 1-(N-methyl-2-piperidinyl)methyl, or 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl, whether or not further substituted on the indazole ring to any extent: including, but not limited to, APP-PICA and 5-fluoro-APP-PICA;

(76) 4-Acetoxy-N,N-dimethyltryptamine: trade name 4-AcO-DMT;

(77) 5-Methoxy-N-methyl-N-isopropyltryptamine: trade name 5-MeO-MIPT;

(78) 4-hydroxy Diethyltryptamine (4-HO-DET);

(79) 4-hydroxy-N-methyl-N-ethyltryptamine (4-HO-MET);

(80) 4-hydroxy-N,N-diisopropyltryptamine (4-HO-DiPT);

(81) 4-hydroxy-N-methyl-N-isopropyltryptamine (4-HO-MiPT);

(82) Fluorophenylpiperazine;

(83) Methoxetamine;

(84) 1-(Ethylamino)-2-phenylpropan-2-one (iso-ethcathinone).

(e) Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having a depressant effect on the central nervous system, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers whenever the existence of such salts, isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation:

(1) mecloqualone;

(2) methaqualone; and

(3) gamma hydroxybutyric acid.

(f) Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having a stimulant effect on the central nervous system, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers:

(1) Fenethylamine;

(2) N-ethylamphetamine;

(3) Aminorex (some other names:

2-amino-5-phenyl-2-oxazoline; aminoxaphen;

4-5-dihydro-5-phenyl-2-oxazolamine) and its

salts, optical isomers, and salts of optical isomers;

(4) Methcathinone (some other names:

2-methylamino-1-phenylpropan-1-one;

Ephedrone; 2-(methylamino)-propiofenone;

alpha-(methylamino)propiofenone; N-methylcathinone;

methcathinone; Monomethylpropion; UR 1431) and its

salts, optical isomers, and salts of optical isomers;

(5) Cathinone (some trade or other names:

2-aminopropiofenone; alpha-aminopropiofenone;

2-amino-1-phenyl-propanone; norephedrone);

(6) N,N-dimethylamphetamine (also known as:

N,N-alpha-trimethyl-benzeneethanamine;

N,N-alpha-trimethylphenethylamine);

(7) (+ or -) cis-4-methylaminorex ((+ or -) cis-4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-5-phenyl-2-oxazolamine);

(8) 3,4-Methylenedioxypropylvalerone (MDPV);

(9) Halogenated amphetamines and methamphetamines - any compound derived from either amphetamine or methamphetamine through the substitution of a halogen on the phenyl ring, including, but not limited to, 2-fluoroamphetamine, 3-fluoroamphetamine and 4-fluoroamphetamine;

(10) Aminopropylbenzofuran (APB): including 4-(2-Aminopropyl) benzofuran, 5-(2-Aminopropyl)benzofuran, 6-(2-Aminopropyl) benzofuran, and 7-(2-Aminopropyl) benzofuran;

(11) Aminopropyl-dihydrobenzofuran (APDB): including 4-(2-Aminopropyl)-2,3-dihydrobenzofuran, 5-(2-Aminopropyl)-2,3-dihydrobenzofuran, 6-(2-Aminopropyl)-2,3-dihydrobenzofuran, and 7-(2-Aminopropyl)-2,3-dihydrobenzofuran;

(12) Methylaminopropylbenzofuran (MAPB): including 4-(2-methylaminopropyl) benzofuran, 5-(2-methylaminopropyl)benzofuran, 6-(2-methylaminopropyl)benzofuran and 7-(2-methylaminopropyl)benzofuran.

(g) Temporary listing of substances subject to emergency scheduling. Any material, compound, mixture, or preparation that contains any quantity of the following substances:

(1) N-[1-benzyl-4-piperidyl]-N-phenylpropanamide (benzylfentanyl), its optical isomers, salts, and salts of isomers;

(2) N-[1(2-thienyl) methyl-4-piperidyl]-N-phenylpropanamide (thylfentanyl), its optical isomers, salts, and salts of isomers.

(h) Synthetic cathinones. Unless specifically excepted, any chemical compound which is not approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration or, if approved, is not dispensed or possessed in accordance with State or federal law, not including bupropion, structurally derived from 2-aminopropan-1-one by substitution at the 1-position with either phenyl, naphthyl, or thiophene ring systems, whether or not the compound is further modified in one or more of the following ways:

(1) by substitution in the ring system to any extent with alkyl, alkylendioxy, alkoxy, haloalkyl, hydroxyl, or halide substituents, whether or not further substituted in the ring system by one or more other univalent substituents. Examples of this class include, but are not limited to, 3,4-Methylenedioxycathinone (bk-MDA);

(2) by substitution at the 3-position with an acyclic alkyl substituent. Examples of this class include, but are not limited to, 2-methylamino-1-phenylbutan-1-one (buphedrone); or

(3) by substitution at the 2-amino nitrogen atom with alkyl, dialkyl, benzyl, or methoxybenzyl groups, or by inclusion of the 2-amino nitrogen atom in a cyclic structure. Examples of this class include, but are not limited to, Dimethylcathinone, Ethcathinone, and a-Pyrrolidinopropiophenone (a-PPP); or

Any other synthetic cathinone which is not approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration or, if approved, is not dispensed or possessed in accordance with State or federal law.

(i) Synthetic cannabinoids or piperazines. Any synthetic cannabinoid or piperazine which is not approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration or, if approved, which is not dispensed or possessed in accordance with State and federal law.

(j) Unless specifically excepted or listed in another schedule, any chemical compound which is not approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration or, if approved, is not dispensed or possessed in accordance with State or federal law, and is derived from the following structural classes and their salts:

(1) Benzodiazepine class: A fused 1,4-diazepine and benzene ring structure with a phenyl connected to the 1,4-diazepine ring, with any substitution(s) or replacement(s) on the 1,4-diazepine or benzene ring, any substitution(s) on the phenyl ring, or any combination thereof. Examples of this class include but are not limited to: Clonazolam, Flualprazolam; or

(2) Thienodiazepine class: A fused 1,4-diazepine and thiophene ring structure with a phenyl connected to the 1,4-diazepine ring, with any substitution(s) or replacement(s) on the 1,4-diazepine or thiophene ring, any substitution(s) on the phenyl ring, or any combination thereof. Examples of this class include but are not limited to: Etizolam.

(Source: P.A. 99-371, eff. 1-1-16; 100-201, eff. 8-18-17; 100-368, eff. 1-1-18; 100-789, eff. 1-1-19; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18.)".

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator D. Turner, **Senate Bill No. 2132** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Joyce, **Senate Bill No. 2226** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Senator Joyce offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2226

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2226 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Department of Natural Resources (Conservation) Law of the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois is amended by adding Section 805-570 as follows:

(20 ILCS 805/805-570 new)

Sec. 805-570. Conservation Opportunity Areas.

(a) In this Section, "Conservation Opportunity Area" means a portion of this State within the Illinois Wildlife Action Plan that assist with the conservation of native species and the habitats that support them.

(b) Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, a Conservation Opportunity Area designation by the Department shall not be used by any State, county, or local government as a basis to deny or withhold any:

(1) regulatory action;

(2) permitting;

(3) licensure; and

(4) funding."

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Peters, **Senate Bill No. 2260** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Committee Amendment No. 1 was postponed in the Senate Special Committee on Criminal Law and Public Safety.

The following amendment was offered in the Senate Special Committee on Criminal Law and Public Safety, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SENATE BILL 2260

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 2260 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Code of Civil Procedure is amended by changing Section 2-1401 as follows:

(735 ILCS 5/2-1401) (from Ch. 110, par. 2-1401)

Sec. 2-1401. Relief from judgments.

(a) Relief from final orders and judgments, after 30 days from the entry thereof, may be had upon petition as provided in this Section. Writs of error coram nobis and coram vobis, bills of review, and bills in the nature of bills of review are abolished. All relief heretofore obtainable and the grounds for such relief heretofore available, whether by any of the foregoing remedies or otherwise, shall be available in every case, by proceedings hereunder, regardless of the nature of the order or judgment from which relief is sought or of the proceedings in which it was entered. Except as provided in the Illinois Parentage Act of 2015, there shall be no distinction between actions and other proceedings, statutory or otherwise, as to availability of relief, grounds for relief, or the relief obtainable.

(b) The petition must be filed in the same proceeding in which the order or judgment was entered but is not a continuation thereof. The petition must be supported by an affidavit or other appropriate showing as to matters not of record. A petition to reopen a foreclosure proceeding must include as parties to the petition, but is not limited to, all parties in the original action in addition to the current record title holders of the property, current occupants, and any individual or entity that had a recorded interest in the property before the filing of the petition. All parties to the petition shall be notified as provided by rule.

(b-5) A movant may present a meritorious claim under this Section if the allegations in the petition establish each of the following by a preponderance of the evidence:

(1) the movant was convicted of a forcible felony;

(2) the movant's participation in the offense was related to him or her previously having been a victim of domestic violence or gender-based violence as perpetrated by an intimate partner;

(3) no substantial evidence or incomplete evidence of domestic violence or gender-based violence against the movant was presented at the movant's sentencing hearing;

(4) (blank) the movant was unaware of the mitigating nature of the evidence of the domestic violence at the time of sentencing and could not have learned of its significance sooner through diligence; and

(5) the ~~new~~ evidence of domestic violence or gender-based violence against the movant is material and noncumulative to other evidence offered at the sentencing hearing, or previous hearing under this Section filed on or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 103rd General Assembly, and is of such a conclusive character that it would likely change the sentence imposed by the original trial court.

Nothing in this subsection (b-5) shall prevent a movant from applying for any other relief under this Section or any other law otherwise available to him or her.

As used in this subsection (b-5):

"Domestic violence" means abuse as defined in Section 103 of the Illinois Domestic Violence Act of 1986.

"Forcible felony" has the meaning ascribed to the term in Section 2-8 of the Criminal Code of 2012.

"Gender-based violence" means the perpetration of "serious harm" as defined in Section 10-9 of the Criminal Code of 2012.

"Intimate partner" means a spouse or former spouse, persons who have or allegedly have had a child in common, or persons who have or have had a dating or engagement relationship.

(b-10) A movant may present a meritorious claim under this Section if the allegations in the petition establish each of the following by a preponderance of the evidence:

(A) she was convicted of a forcible felony;

(B) her participation in the offense was a direct result of her suffering from post-partum depression or post-partum psychosis;

(C) no evidence of post-partum depression or post-partum psychosis was presented by a qualified medical person at trial or sentencing, or both;

(D) she was unaware of the mitigating nature of the evidence or, if aware, was at the time unable to present this defense due to suffering from post-partum depression or post-partum psychosis, or, at the time of trial or sentencing, neither was a recognized mental illness and as such, she was unable to receive proper treatment; and

(E) evidence of post-partum depression or post-partum psychosis as suffered by the person is material and noncumulative to other evidence offered at the time of trial or sentencing, and it is of such a conclusive character that it would likely change the sentence imposed by the original court.

Nothing in this subsection (b-10) prevents a person from applying for any other relief under this Article or any other law otherwise available to her.

As used in this subsection (b-10):

"Post-partum depression" means a mood disorder which strikes many women during and after pregnancy and usually occurs during pregnancy and up to 12 months after delivery. This depression can include anxiety disorders.

"Post-partum psychosis" means an extreme form of post-partum depression which can occur during pregnancy and up to 12 months after delivery. This can include losing touch with reality, distorted thinking, delusions, auditory and visual hallucinations, paranoia, hyperactivity and rapid speech, or mania.

(c) Except as provided in Section 20b of the Adoption Act and Section 2-32 of the Juvenile Court Act of 1987, in a petition based upon Section 116-3 of the Code of Criminal Procedure of 1963 or subsection (b-5) or (b-10) of this Section, or in a motion to vacate and expunge convictions under the Cannabis Control Act as provided by subsection (i) of Section 5.2 of the Criminal Identification Act, the petition must be filed not later than 2 years after the entry of the order or judgment. Time during which the person seeking relief is under legal disability or duress or the ground for relief is fraudulently concealed shall be excluded in computing the period of 2 years.

(c-5) Any individual may at any time file a petition and institute proceedings under this Section if his or her final order or judgment, which was entered based on a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, has potential consequences under federal immigration law.

(d) The filing of a petition under this Section does not affect the order or judgment, or suspend its operation.

(e) Unless lack of jurisdiction affirmatively appears from the record proper, the vacation or modification of an order or judgment pursuant to the provisions of this Section does not affect the right, title, or interest in or to any real or personal property of any person, not a party to the original action, acquired for value after the entry of the order or judgment but before the filing of the petition, nor affect any right of any person not a party to the original action under any certificate of sale issued before the filing of the petition, pursuant to a sale based on the order or judgment. When a petition is filed pursuant to this Section to reopen a foreclosure proceeding, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 15-1701 of this Code, the purchaser or successor purchaser of real property subject to a foreclosure sale who was not a party to the mortgage foreclosure proceedings is entitled to remain in possession of the property until the foreclosure action is defeated or the previously foreclosed defendant redeems from the foreclosure sale if the purchaser has been in possession of the property for more than 6 months.

(f) Nothing contained in this Section affects any existing right to relief from a void order or judgment, or to employ any existing method to procure that relief.

(Source: P.A. 101-27, eff. 6-25-19; 101-411, eff. 8-16-19; 102-639, eff. 8-27-21; 102-813, eff. 5-13-22)."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 2 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Villivalam, **Senate Bill No. 2285** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Floor Amendment No. 1 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

There being no further amendments, the bill was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Koehler, **Senate Bill No. 1782** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Floor Amendment No. 1 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

There being no further amendments, the bill was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Holmes, **Senate Bill No. 2227** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Senator Holmes offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2227

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2227 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

[March 24, 2023]

"Section 5. The Counties Code is amended by changing Sections 3-5001, 3-5002, 3-5003, 3-5004, 3-5005, 3-5005.1, 3-5005.2, 3-5005.3, 3-5005.4, 3-5006, 3-5007, 3-5008, 3-5009, 3-5010, 3-5010.5, 3-5010.8, 3-5011, 3-5012, 3-5013, 3-5014, 3-5015, 3-5016, 3-5019, 3-5020, 3-5020.5, 3-5021, 3-5024, 3-5025, 3-5029, 3-5031, 3-5033, 3-5036.5, 3-5037, 3-5038, 3-5045, 4-12003 and by adding Sections 3-5018.2 and 4-12002.3 as follows:

(55 ILCS 5/3-5001) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5001)

Sec. 3-5001. County clerk as recorder; election of recorder. The county clerk in counties having a population of less than 60,000 inhabitants shall be the recorder in the clerk's his county.

In counties having a population of 60,000 or more inhabitants, there shall be elected a recorder, as provided by law, who shall hold his office until a his successor is qualified.

If the population of any county in which a recorder has been elected decreases to less than 60,000, the voters of that county shall continue to elect a recorder if the county board adopts a resolution to continue the office of an elected recorder.

(Source: P.A. 86-962; 86-1028.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5002) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5002)

Sec. 3-5002. Bond. Every recorder, whether elected as such or holding the office of recorder in addition to the office of county clerk as hereinbefore provided, shall, before entering upon the duties of the his or her office, give bonds (or, if the county is self-insured, the county through its self-insurance program may provide bonding), with sufficient security to be approved by the circuit court, payable to the People of the State of Illinois, in the penal sum of \$10,000 (except that in counties having a population of 60,000 or more inhabitants the penalty of the bond shall be \$20,000), conditioned for the faithful discharge of the recorder's his or her duties, and to deliver up all papers, books, records and other things appertaining to the his or her office, whole, safe and undefaced, when lawfully required so to do - which bond shall be filed in the office of the Secretary of State, and a copy thereof filed of record in the court.

(Source: P.A. 88-387.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5003) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5003)

Sec. 3-5003. Oath. Each recorder, before entering upon the duties of the his office, shall take and subscribe to the oath or affirmation prescribed by Section 3, Article XIII of the Constitution, which shall be filed with the county clerk.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5004) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5004)

Sec. 3-5004. Commencement of duties. The recorder shall enter upon the duties of the his office on the first day in the month of December following the recorder's his election on which the office of the recorder is required, by statute or by action of the county board, to be open. The recorder He shall be commissioned by the Governor.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5005) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5005)

Sec. 3-5005. Functions, powers and duties of recorder. The functions and powers of the recorders shall be uniform in the various counties of this State. The recorder has those functions, powers, and duties as provided in this Division the Sections following this Section and preceding Section 3-5006.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5005.1) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5005.1)

Sec. 3-5005.1. Appointment of deputies, assistants and personnel. The recorder shall appoint his deputies, assistants, and personnel to assist the recorder him in the performance of the recorder's his duties.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5005.2) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5005.2)

Sec. 3-5005.2. Internal operations of office. The recorder shall have the right to control the internal operations of the his office; to procure necessary equipment, materials and services to perform the duties of the his office. The recorder Recorder shall have the right to select the computer or micrographic system to be used for document storage and retrieval. The recorder Recorder may retain the services of management or consulting firms to establish or maintain such a system.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5005.3) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5005.3)

Sec. 3-5005.3. Monthly report of financial status. The recorder shall file a monthly report with the county clerk summarizing the financial status of the his office in such form as shall be determined by the county board.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5005.4) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5005.4)

Sec. 3-5005.4. Deposit of fee income; special funds. The recorder shall deposit in the office of the county treasurer monthly by the 10th day of the month following, all fee income. The recorder may maintain the following special funds from which the county board shall authorize payment by voucher between board meetings:

(a) Overpayments.

(b) Reasonable amount needed during the succeeding accounting period to pay office expenses, postage, freight, express or similar charges.

(c) Excess earnings from the sale of revenue stamps to be maintained in a fund to be used for the purchase of additional stamps from the Illinois Department of Revenue.

(d) Fund to pay necessary travel, dues and other expenses incurred in attending workshops, educational seminars and organizational meetings established for the purpose of providing in-service training.

(e) Trust funds and for such other purposes as may be provided for by law.

(f) Such other funds as may be authorized by the county board. The recorder shall make accounting monthly to the county board through the county clerk of all special funds maintained by the recorder ~~him~~ in the discharge of the recorder's ~~his~~ duties.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5006) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5006)

Sec. 3-5006. Appointment of deputies in writing. Appointments of deputies shall be in writing, and entered upon the records of the ~~his~~ office.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5007) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5007)

Sec. 3-5007. Oath of deputies. Each deputy shall, before entering upon the deputy's duties ~~of his office~~, take and subscribe an oath or affirmation, in like form as is required of the recorder, which shall be filed in the office of the recorder.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5008) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5008)

Sec. 3-5008. Powers of deputies. Deputy recorders duly appointed and qualified may perform any and all duties of the recorder in the name of the recorder, and the acts of such deputies shall be held to be the acts of the recorder, and in case of the death of the recorder or the recorder's ~~his~~ deposition from office, the chief deputy shall thereupon become the acting recorder until such vacancy shall be filled according to the ~~The~~ Election Code, and the chief deputy ~~he~~ shall file a like bond and be vested with the same powers and subject to the same responsibilities and entitled to the same compensation as in case of recorder. Provided, that if the recorder is called into the active military service of the United States, the ~~his~~ office shall not be deemed to be vacant during the time the recorder ~~he~~ is in the active military service of the United States, but during the time the recorder ~~he~~ is in such active military service of the United States the chief deputy recorder shall be the recorder, and shall perform and discharge all of the duties of the recorder in such county, and shall be paid the same compensation as provided by law for the recorder of the county unless compensated at a higher rate than the recorder as chief deputy, apportioned as to the time of service, and the chief ~~such~~ deputy recorder shall cease to be the recorder upon the discharge of said recorder from the active military service of the United States; and provided further, that the chief deputy recorder, upon becoming the temporary recorder during the absence of the recorder in the active military service of the United States, shall give bond as required of a regularly elected recorder.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5009) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5009)

Sec. 3-5009. Recorder liable for deputies. The recorder shall be liable for any neglect or omission of the duties of the ~~his~~ office, when occasioned by a deputy, in the same manner as for the recorder's ~~his~~ own personal neglect or omission.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5010) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5010)

Sec. 3-5010. Duties of recorder. Every recorder shall, as soon as practicable after the receipt of any instrument in writing in the ~~his~~ office, entitled to be recorded, record the same at length in the order of time of its reception, in well bound books or computer databases to be provided for that purpose. In counties of 500,000 or more inhabitants, the recorder may microphotograph or otherwise reproduce on film any of such

instruments in the manner provided by law. In counties of less than 500,000 inhabitants, the recorder may cause to be microphotographed or otherwise reproduced on film any of such instruments or electronic method of storage. When any such instrument is reproduced on film or electronic method of storage, the film or electronic method of storage shall comply with the minimum standards of quality approved for records of the State Records Commission and the device used to reproduce the records on the film or electronic method of storage shall be one which accurately reproduces the contents of the original.

(Source: P.A. 97-757, eff. 7-6-12.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5010.5)

Sec. 3-5010.5. Fraud referral and review.

(a) Legislative findings. The General Assembly finds that property fraud, including fraudulent filings intended to cloud or fraudulently transfer title to property by recording false or altered documents and deeds, is a rapidly growing problem throughout the State. In order to combat the increase in the number of these filings, a recorder may establish a process to review and refer documents suspected to be fraudulent.

(b) Definitions. The terms "recording" and "filing" are used interchangeably in this Section.

(c) Establishment and use of a fraud referral and review process. A recorder who establishes a fraud referral and review process under the provisions of this Section may use it to review deeds and instruments and refer any of them to an administrative law judge for review pursuant to subsection (g) of this Section that cause the recorder to reasonably believe that the filing may be fraudulent, unlawfully altered, or intended to unlawfully cloud or transfer the title of any real property. The recorder may enter into an intergovernmental agreement with local law enforcement officials for the purposes of this referral and review. A recorder may request that the Secretary of the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation assist in reviewing possible fraudulent filings. Upon request, the Secretary, or the Secretary's his or her designee, shall assist in identifying the validity of filings. The recorder shall notify the Secretary when a document suspected to be fraudulent is discovered.

In counties with a population of less than 3 million, a recorder shall provide public notice 90 days before the establishment of the fraud referral and review process. The notice shall include a statement of the recorder's intent to create a fraud referral and review process and shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county and, if feasible, posted on the recorder's website and at the recorder's office or offices.

In determining whether to refer a document to an administrative law judge for review, a recorder may take into consideration any of the following factors:

(1) whether the owner of the property or owner's his or her designated representative has reported to the recorder that another individual is attempting or has attempted to record a fraudulent deed or other instrument upon the property;

(2) whether a law enforcement official has contacted the recorder indicating that the law enforcement official he or she has probable cause to suspect title or recording fraud;

(3) whether the filer's name has a copyright attached to it or the property owner's name has nonstandard punctuation attached to it;

(4) whether the documents assert fines that do not exist or have no basis under current law or that require payment in gold or silver;

(5) whether the documents are maritime liens, or liens under the Federal Maritime Lien Act or the Preferred Ship Mortgage Act, or not authorized by the United States Coast Guard;

(6) whether the documents are land patents not authorized and certified by the United States Department of the Interior Bureau of Land Management;

(7) whether the documents are representing that the subject of the lien is releasing itself from a lien held by another entity, with no apparent cooperation or authorization provided by the lienholder;

(8) whether the documents are protesting or disputing a foreclosure proceeding that are not filed within the foreclosure suit and with the court presiding over the matter;

(9) whether the documents are Uniform Commercial Code filings referencing birth certificates or other private records that are not in compliance with Section 9-501 of the Uniform Commercial Code;

(10) whether the documents are re-recording deeds to re-notarize or attach notary certification if prior notarization already appears unaltered on the document of record;

(11) whether the documents are asserting diplomatic credentials or immunity, non-United States citizenship, or independence from the laws of the United States;

(12) whether the documents are claims that a bank cannot hold title after a foreclosure;

(13) whether the documents are deeds not properly signed by the last legal owner of record or the owner's court-appointed ~~his or her court appointed~~ representative or attorney-in-fact under a power of attorney;

(14) whether the documents are manipulated or altered federal or State legal or court forms that release a lien;

(15) whether a document is not related to a valid existing or potential adverse transaction, existing lien, or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction;

(16) a document that is not related to a valid existing or potential commercial or financial transaction, existing agricultural or other lien, or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction;

(17) whether the document is filed with the intent to harass or defraud the person identified in the record or any other person;

(18) whether the document is filed with the intent to harass or defraud any member of a governmental office, including, but not limited to, the recorder's office, local government offices, the State of Illinois, or the Federal government; and

(19) whether the documents are previous court determinations, including a previous determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that a particular document is fraudulent, invalid, or forged.

(d) Determinations. If a recorder determines, after review by legal staff and counsel, that a deed or instrument that is recorded in the grantor's index or the grantee's index may be fraudulent, unlawfully altered, or intended to unlawfully cloud or transfer the title of any real property, the recorder ~~he or she~~ shall refer the deed or instrument to an administrative law judge for review pursuant to subsection (g) of this Section. The recorder shall record a Notice of Referral in the grantor's index or the grantee's index identifying the document, corresponding document number in question, and the date of referral. The recorder shall also notify the parties set forth in subsection (e) of this Section. The recorder may, at the recorder's ~~his or her~~ discretion, notify law enforcement officials regarding a filing determined to be fraudulent, unlawfully altered, or intended to unlawfully cloud or transfer the title of any real property.

(e) Notice. The recorder shall use county property tax records to identify and provide notice to the last owner of record by telephone, if available, and certified mail both when: (1) a deed or instrument has been referred for review and determination; and (2) a final determination has been made regarding the deed or instrument. Notice, by mail, shall also be sent to the physical address of the property associated with the deed or instrument.

(f) Administrative decision. The recorder's decision to add a Notice of Referral and refer a document for review is a final administrative decision that is subject to review by the circuit court of the county where the real property is located under the Administrative Review Law. The standard of review by the circuit court shall be de novo.

(g) Referral and review process. Prior to referral, the recorder shall notify the last owner of record of the document or documents suspected to be fraudulent. The person, entity, or legal representative thereof shall confirm in writing the person's, entity's, or legal representative's ~~his or her~~ belief that a document or documents are suspected to be fraudulent and may request that the recorder refer the case for review. Upon request, the recorder shall bring a case to its county department of administrative hearings and, within 10 business days after receipt, an administrative law judge shall schedule a hearing to occur no later than 30 days after receiving the referral. The referral and case shall clearly identify the person, persons, or entity believed to be the last true owner of record as the petitioner. Notice of the hearing shall be provided by the administrative law judge to the filer, or the party represented by the filer, of the suspected fraudulent document, the legal representative of the recorder of deeds who referred the case, and the last owner of record, as identified in the referral.

If clear and convincing evidence shows the document in question to be fraudulent, the administrative law judge shall rule the document to be fraudulent and forward the judgment to all the parties identified in this subsection. Upon receiving notice of the judgment of fraud, the recorder shall, within 5 business days, record a new document that includes a copy of the judgment in front of the Notice of Referral that shall clearly state that the document in question has been found to be fraudulent and shall not be considered to affect the chain of title of the property in any way.

If the administrative law judge finds the document to be legitimate, the recorder shall, within 5 business days after receiving notice, record a copy of the judgment.

A decision by an administrative law judge shall not preclude a State's attorney or sheriff from proceeding with a criminal investigation or criminal charges. If a county does not have an administrative

law judge that specializes in public records, one shall be appointed within 3 months after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 98th General Assembly, or the original case shall be forwarded to the proper circuit court with jurisdiction.

Nothing in this Section precludes a private right of action by any party with an interest in the property affected by the review and referral, or the filer of the document or documents suspected to be fraudulent. Nothing in this Section requires a person or entity who may have had a fraudulent document or encumbrance filed against the person's or entity's ~~his or her~~ property to use the fraud review and referral process or administrative review created by this Section.

(h) Fees. The recorder shall retain any filing fees associated with filing a deed or instrument that is determined to be fraudulent, unlawfully altered, or intended to unlawfully cloud or transfer the title of any real property under this Section.

(i) Liability. Neither a recorder nor any of ~~the recorder's his or her~~ employees or agents shall be subject to personal liability by reason of any error or omission in the performance of any duty under this Section, except in case of willful or wanton conduct. Neither the recorder nor any of ~~the recorder's his or her~~ employees shall incur liability for the referral or review, or failure to refer or review, a document or instrument under this Section.

(j) Applicability. This Section applies only to filings provided to the recorder on and after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 98th General Assembly.

(k) (Blank).

(Source: P.A. 100-276, eff. 8-22-17.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5010.8)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2024)

Sec. 3-5010.8. Mechanics lien demand and referral pilot program.

(a) Legislative findings. The General Assembly finds that expired mechanics liens on residential property, which cloud title to property, are a rapidly growing problem throughout the State. In order to address the increase in expired mechanics liens and, more specifically, those that have not been released by the lienholder, a recorder may establish a process to demand and refer mechanics liens that have been recorded but not litigated or released in accordance with the Mechanics Lien Act to an administrative law judge for resolution or demand that the lienholder commence suit or forfeit the lien.

(b) Definitions. As used in this Section:

"Demand to Commence Suit" means the written demand specified in Section 34 of the Mechanics Lien Act.

"Mechanics lien" and "lien" are used interchangeably in this Section.

"Notice of Expired Mechanics Lien" means the notice a recorder gives to a property owner under subsection (d) informing the property owner of an expired lien.

"Notice of Referral" means the document referring a mechanics lien to a county's code hearing unit.

"Recording" and "filing" are used interchangeably in this Section.

"Referral" or "refer" means a recorder's referral of a mechanics lien to a county's code hearing unit to obtain a determination as to whether a recorded mechanics lien is valid.

"Residential property" means real property improved with not less than one nor more than 4 residential dwelling units; a residential condominium unit, including, but not limited to, the common elements allocated to the exclusive use of the condominium unit that form an integral part of the condominium unit and any parking unit or units specified by the declaration to be allocated to a specific residential condominium unit; or a single tract of agriculture real estate consisting of 40 acres or less that is improved with a single-family residence. If a declaration of condominium ownership provides for individually owned and transferable parking units, "residential property" does not include the parking unit of a specified residential condominium unit unless the parking unit is included in the legal description of the property against which the mechanics lien is recorded.

(c) Establishment of a mechanics lien demand and referral process. After a public hearing, a recorder in a county with a code hearing unit may adopt rules establishing a mechanics lien demand and referral process for residential property. A recorder shall provide public notice 90 days before the public hearing. The notice shall include a statement of the recorder's intent to create a mechanics lien demand and referral process and shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county and, if feasible, be posted on the recorder's website and at the recorder's office or offices.

(d) Notice of Expired Lien. If a recorder determines, after review by legal staff or counsel, that a mechanics lien recorded in the grantor's index or the grantee's index is an expired lien, the recorder shall

serve a Notice of Expired Lien by certified mail to the last known address of the owner. The owner or legal representative of the owner of the residential property shall confirm in writing the owner's or legal representative's ~~his or her~~ belief that the lien is not involved in pending litigation and, if there is no pending litigation, as verified and confirmed by county court records, the owner may request that the recorder proceed with a referral or serve a Demand to Commence Suit.

For the purposes of this Section, a recorder shall determine if a lien is an expired lien. A lien is expired if a suit to enforce the lien has not been commenced or a counterclaim has not been filed by the lienholder within 2 years after the completion date of the contract as specified in the recorded mechanics lien. The 2-year period shall be increased to the extent that an automatic stay under Section 362(a) of the United States Bankruptcy Code stays a suit or counterclaim to foreclose the lien. If a work completion date is not specified in the recorded lien, then the work completion date is the date of recording of the mechanics lien.

(e) Demand to Commence Suit. Upon receipt of an owner's confirmation that the lien is not involved in pending litigation and a request for the recorder to serve a Demand to Commence Suit, the recorder shall serve a Demand to Commence Suit on the lienholder of the expired lien as provided in Section 34 of the Mechanics Lien Act. A recorder may request that the Secretary of State assist in providing registered agent information or obtain information from the Secretary of State's registered business database when the recorder seeks to serve a Demand to Commence suit on the lienholder. Upon request, the Secretary of State, or the Secretary of State's ~~his or her~~ designee, shall provide the last known address or registered agent information for a lienholder who is incorporated or doing business in the State. The recorder must record a copy of the Demand to Commence suit in the grantor's index or the grantee's index identifying the mechanics lien and include the corresponding document number and the date of demand. The recorder may, at the recorder's ~~his or her~~ discretion, notify the Secretary of State regarding a Demand to Commence suit determined to involve a company, corporation, or business registered with that office.

When the lienholder commences a suit or files an answer within 30 days or the lienholder records a release of lien with the county recorder as required by subsection (a) of Section 34 of the Mechanics Lien Act, then the demand and referral process is completed for the recorder for that property. If service under this Section is responded to consistent with Section 34 of the Mechanics Lien Act, the recorder may not proceed under subsection (f). If no response is received consistent with Section 34 of the Mechanics Lien Act, the recorder may proceed under subsection (f).

(f) Referral. Upon receipt of an owner's confirmation that the lien is not involved in pending litigation and a request for the recorder to proceed with a referral, the recorder shall: (i) file the Notice of Referral with the county's code hearing unit; (ii) identify and notify the lienholder by telephone, if available, of the referral and send a copy of the Notice of Referral by certified mail to the lienholder using information included in the recorded mechanics lien or the last known address or registered agent received from the Secretary of State or obtained from the Secretary of State's registered business database; (iii) send a copy of the Notice of Referral by mail to the physical address of the property owner associated with the lien; and (iv) record a copy of the Notice of Referral in the grantor's index or the grantee's index identifying the mechanics lien and include the corresponding document number. The Notice of Referral shall clearly identify the person, persons, or entity believed to be the owner, assignee, successor, or beneficiary of the lien. The recorder may, at the recorder's ~~his or her~~ discretion, notify the Secretary of State regarding a referral determined to involve a company, corporation, or business registered with that office.

No earlier than 30 business days after the date the lienholder is required to respond to a Demand to Commence Suit under Section 34 of the Mechanics Lien Act, the code hearing unit shall schedule a hearing to occur at least 30 days after sending notice of the date of hearing. Notice of the hearing shall be provided by the county recorder, by and through the recorder's ~~his or her~~ representative, to the filer, or the party represented by the filer, of the expired lien, the legal representative of the recorder of deeds who referred the case, and the last owner of record, as identified in the Notice of Referral.

If the recorder shows by clear and convincing evidence that the lien in question is an expired lien, the administrative law judge shall rule the lien is forfeited under Section 34.5 of the Mechanics Lien Act and that the lien no longer affects the chain of title of the property in any way. The judgment shall be forwarded to all parties identified in this subsection. Upon receiving judgment of a forfeited lien, the recorder shall, within 5 business days, record a copy of the judgment in the grantor's index or the grantee's index.

If the administrative law judge finds the lien is not expired, the recorder shall, no later than 5 business days after receiving notice of the decision of the administrative law judge, record a copy of the judgment in the grantor's index or the grantee's index.

A decision by an administrative law judge is reviewable under the Administrative Review Law, and nothing in this Section precludes a property owner or lienholder from proceeding with a civil action to resolve questions concerning a mechanics lien.

A lienholder or property owner may remove the action from the code hearing unit to the circuit court as provided in subsection (i).

(g) Final administrative decision. The recorder's decision to refer a mechanics lien or serve a Demand to Commence Suit is a final administrative decision that is subject to review under the Administrative Review Law by the circuit court of the county where the real property is located. The standard of review by the circuit court shall be consistent with the Administrative Review Law.

(h) Liability. A recorder and ~~the recorder's his or her~~ employees or agents are not subject to personal liability by reason of any error or omission in the performance of any duty under this Section, except in the case of willful or wanton conduct. The recorder and ~~the recorder's his or her~~ employees or agents are not liable for the decision to refer a lien or serve a Demand to Commence Suit, or failure to refer or serve a Demand to Commence Suit, of a lien under this Section.

(i) Private actions; use of demand and referral process. Nothing in this Section precludes a private right of action by any party with an interest in the property affected by the mechanics lien or a decision by the code hearing unit. Nothing in this Section requires a person or entity who may have a mechanics lien recorded against the person's or entity's ~~his or her~~ property to use the mechanics lien demand and referral process created by this Section.

A lienholder or property owner may remove a matter in the referral process to the circuit court at any time prior to the final decision of the administrative law judge by delivering a certified notice of the suit filed in the circuit court to the administrative law judge. Upon receipt of the certified notice, the administrative law judge shall dismiss the matter without prejudice. If the matter is dismissed due to removal, then the demand and referral process is completed for the recorder for that property. If the circuit court dismisses the removed matter without deciding on whether the lien is expired and without prejudice, the recorder may reinstitute the demand and referral process under subsection (d).

(j) Repeal. This Section is repealed on January 1, 2024.

(Source: P.A. 101-296, eff. 8-9-19; 102-671, eff. 11-30-21.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5011) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5011)

Sec. 3-5011. Office to remain open during bank holiday. Whenever an emergency exists which involves the banking or credit structure within the State of Illinois, and which is recognized by a proclamation by the Governor or by an act or resolution of the General Assembly, and by such proclamation of the Governor a public holiday has been or shall be declared, the proclamation of such public holiday shall not require the recorder or registrar of titles in any county in this State to close ~~the recorder's or registrar's his~~ office, but every such recorder or registrar of titles shall continue to keep ~~the recorder's or registrar's his~~ office open and to operate in the same manner as though no such public holiday had been declared, unless in and by such proclamation the Governor of this State shall make specific reference to the closing of recorders' or registrars' offices in this State. The actions of any recorder or registrar of titles performed prior to May 26, 1933 and during the continuance of any such holiday, are validated.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5012) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5012)

Sec. 3-5012. Recording and indexing books. Separate books and computer databases may be kept for the recording and indexing of different classes of instruments. Three distinct series of document numbers may be used for recording documents received for recordation, one series of numbers to be preceded by the letter "b" in each case, which series shall be used only for bills of sale of personal property, chattel mortgages and releases, extensions and assignments, thereof, one series of numbers to be preceded by the letter "c" in each case, which series shall be used only for certificates of discharge of discharged members of the military, aviation and naval forces of the United States, and the other series of document numbers shall be used for all other instruments received for recordation. When three series of document numbers are thus used, a separate place may be provided in the Recorder's office for the receipt of each kind of documents to which such serial numbers apply.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5013) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5013)

Sec. 3-5013. Transcription or reproduction of written instruments. The recorder, when recording at length instruments in writing in ~~the his or her~~ office, may transcribe the instruments in handwriting or typewriting, make photographic or photostatic reproductions of the instruments, or transcribe the

instruments partly in handwriting or typewriting and make photographic or photostatic reproductions of the remaining portions of the instruments. Every document, however, shall be filed in a complete and intelligible manner. The recorder may not accept facsimile or other photographic or photostatic copies of the signatures of parties executing documents without labeling those signatures as copies unless they are digital signatures submitted under federal or State law. When photographic or photostatic reproductions are used, the recorder shall first be satisfied that the reproductions are as lasting and durable as handwritten or typewritten copies. The reproductions may shall be upon sheets bound together in well bound books or placed in books that are permanently locked so that the sheets cannot be tampered with or removed. When instruments are reproduced by microphotography, digital scanning, or otherwise reproduced on film as provided in this Section the reproduction thus made shall be deemed the record for all purposes. (Source: P.A. 86-962; 87-376.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5014) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5014)

Sec. 3-5014. Mortgages or liens filed but not recorded. Upon receipt of any mortgage, trust deed or conveyance of personal property having the effect of a mortgage or lien upon such property, upon which is indorsed the words, "this instrument to be filed, but not recorded" or words of a similar import, signed by the mortgagee, the mortgagee's his agent or attorney, and upon payment of a fee equal to what would be charged if the document were to be recorded, the recorder shall mark the instrument "filed", endorse the time (including the hour of the day) of the receipt thereof and file the same in the his office.

Each instrument filed as above shall be numbered and indexed by the recorder Recorder in the book wherein the recorder he alphabetically indexes chattel mortgages and shall refer to the number appearing on the filed instrument.

The recorder may destroy any instrument filed but not recorded in the manner hereinabove provided, one year after the maturity thereof as stated therein; except, no such instrument may be destroyed until one year after the maturity of the last extension thereof filed in the recorder's office.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5015) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5015)

Sec. 3-5015. Certificates of discharge or release from active duty. Certificates of discharge or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty of honorably discharged or separated members of the military, aviation and naval forces of the United States shall be recorded by each recorder, free of charge, in a separate book or computer database which shall be kept for the purpose. The recorder in counties of over 500,000 population shall as soon as practicable after the recording of the original discharge certificate or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty, deliver to each of the persons named in the discharge certificate or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty, or the person's his agent, one certified copy of the person's his discharge certificate or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty without charge. Additional certified copies shall be furnished by the recorder upon the payment to the recorder of a fee of \$1.25, payable in advance, for each such additional certified copy. The recorder may waive the fee for reasonable requests for additional copies if the recorder deems collecting the fee to be a burden to the county, but only if the fee is waived for all reasonable requests for additional copies under this Section.

Upon the delivery of the certificate of discharge or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty after the recordation thereof is completed, and the delivery of one certified copy thereof to the person named in the discharge certificate or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty or the person's his agent, the receipt theretofore issued by the recorder, or a copy thereof shall be surrendered to the recorder, with a signed statement acknowledging the receipt of the discharge certificate or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty and the certified copy thereof.

Certified copies of the certificates of discharge or MEMBER-4 copy of certificate of release or discharge from active duty furnished by the recorder may vary from the size of the original, if in the judgment of the recorder, such certified copies are complete and legible.

A military discharge form (DD-214) or any other certificate of discharge or release from active duty document that was issued by the United States government or any state government in reference to those who served with an active or inactive military reserve unit or National Guard force and that was recorded by a County Clerk or Recorder of Deeds is not subject to public inspection, enjoying all the protection covered by the federal Privacy Act of 1974 or any other privacy law. These documents shall be accessible only to the person named in the document, the named person's dependents, the county veterans' service officer, representatives of the Department of Veterans' Affairs, or any person with written authorization from the

named person or the named person's dependents. Notwithstanding any other provision in this paragraph, these documents shall be made available for public inspection and copying in accordance with the archival schedule adopted by the National Archives and Records Administration and subject to redaction of information that is considered private under the Illinois Freedom of Information Act, the federal Freedom of Information Act, and the federal Privacy Act.

(Source: P.A. 101-402, eff. 8-16-19.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5016) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5016)

Sec. 3-5016. Quarters; office hours. Every recorder ~~Recorder~~ shall keep the recorder's ~~his~~ office at the courthouse of the county for which the recorder was elected ~~he is~~ recorder, or in counties of the second or third class in some other suitable building provided at the county seat by the county for which the person was elected ~~he is~~ recorder and shall keep the ~~his~~ office open except as hereinafter provided and attend to the duties thereof in counties of the first and second classes from 8 o'clock A.M. to 5 o'clock P.M. of each working day, except Saturday and Sunday, and in counties of the third class from 9 o'clock A.M. to 5 o'clock P.M. of each working day, except Saturday and Sunday. ~~The, and except in each county of all classes such days as under any law are or may be legal holidays in any part of the county, as regards the presenting for payment, acceptance, maturity, protesting, or giving notice of the dishonor of bills of exchange, bank checks, promissory notes, or other negotiable or commercial paper or instruments: Provided, however, that the hours of opening and closing of the office of the recorder Recorder may be changed and otherwise fixed and determined by the county board of any county. Any such action taken by the county board shall be by an appropriate resolution passed at a regular meeting. The office of the recorder shall accept instruments for recordation at all times during which the office is open.~~

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5018.2 new)

Sec. 3-5018.2. Predictable fee schedule for recordings in first and second class counties.

(a) The fees of the recorder in counties of the first and second class for recording deeds or other instruments in writing and maps of plats of additions, subdivisions, or otherwise and for certifying copies of records shall be paid in advance and shall conform to this Section. The fees or surcharges shall not, unless otherwise provided in this Section, be based on the individual attributes of a document to be recorded, including, but not limited to, page count; number, length, or type of legal descriptions; number of tax identification or other parcel-identifying code numbers; number of common addresses; number of references contained as to other recorded documents or document numbers; or any other individual attribute of the document. The fees charged under this Section shall be inclusive of all county and State fees that the county may elect or is required to impose or adjust, including, but not limited to, GIS fees, automation fees, document storage fees, and the Rental Housing Support Program State and county surcharges.

(b) A county of the first or second class shall adopt and implement, by ordinance or resolution, a predictable fee schedule as provided in subsection (c) that eliminates surcharges or fees based on the individual attributes of a document to be recorded. If a county has previously adopted an ordinance or resolution adopting a predictable fee schedule, the county must adopt an ordinance or resolution revising that predictable fee schedule to be consistent with this Section. After a document class predictable fee is approved by a county board consistent with this Section, the county board may, by ordinance or resolution, increase the document class predictable fee and collect the increased fees if the established fees are not sufficient to cover the costs of providing the services related to the document class for which the fee is to be increased.

For the purposes of the fee charged, the ordinance or resolution shall divide documents into the classifications specified in subsection (c), and shall establish a single, all-inclusive county and State-imposed aggregate predictable fee charged for each classification of document at the time of recording for that document. Each document, unless otherwise provided in this Section, shall fall within one of the document class predictable fee classifications set by subsection (c), and fees for each document class shall be charged only as allowed by this Section.

Before approval of an ordinance or resolution under this subsection that creates or modifies a predictable fee schedule, the recorder or county clerk shall post a notice in the recorder's or clerk's office at least 2 weeks prior, but not more than 4 weeks prior, to the public meeting at which the ordinance or resolution may be adopted. The notice shall contain the proposed ordinance or resolution number, if any, the proposed document class predictable fees for each classification, and a reference to this Section and this amendatory Act of the 103rd General Assembly. A predictable fee schedule takes effect 60 days after an

ordinance or resolution is adopted, unless the fee schedule was previously created and the ordinance or resolution is a modification allowed under this Section.

Nothing in this Section precludes a county board from adjusting amounts or allocations within a given document class predictable fee when the document class predictable fee is not increased or precludes an alternate predictable fee schedule for electronic recording within each of the classifications under subsection (c).

If the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge is amended and the surcharge is increased or lowered, the aggregate amount of the document predictable fee attributable to the surcharge in the document may be changed accordingly. If any fee or surcharge is changed by State statute, the county may increase the document class fees by the same amount without any cost study.

(c) A predictable fee schedule ordinance or resolution adopted under this Section shall list document fees, including document class predictable fees. The document classes shall be as follows:

(1) Deeds. The aggregate fee for recording deeds shall not be less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge). Inclusion of language in the deed as to any restriction; covenant; lien; oil, gas, or other mineral interest; easement; lease; or a mortgage shall not alter the classification of a document as a deed.

(2) Leases, lease amendments, and similar transfer of interest documents. The aggregate fee for recording leases, lease amendments, and similar transfers of interest documents shall not be less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(3) Mortgages. The aggregate fee for recording mortgages, including assignments, extensions, amendments, subordinations, and mortgage releases shall not be less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(4) Easements not otherwise part of another classification. The aggregate fee for recording easements not otherwise part of another classification, including assignments, extensions, amendments, and easement releases not filed by a State agency, unit of local government, or school district, shall not be less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(5) Irregular documents. Any document presented that does not conform to the following standards, even if it may qualify for another document class, may be recorded under this document class (5) if the irregularity allows a legible reproduction of the document presented:

(A) The document shall consist of one or more individual sheets measuring 8.5 inches by 11 inches, not permanently bound, and not a continuous form. Graphic displays accompanying a document to be recorded that measure up to 11 inches by 17 inches shall be recorded without charging an additional fee.

(B) The document shall be legibly printed in black ink by hand, type, or computer. Signatures and dates may be in contrasting colors if they will reproduce clearly.

(C) The document shall be on white paper of not less than 20-pound weight and shall have a clean margin of at least one-half inch on the top, the bottom, and each side. Margins may be used only for non-essential notations that will not affect the validity of the document, including, but not limited to, form numbers, page numbers, and customer notations.

(D) The first page of the document shall contain a blank space, measuring at least 3 inches by 5 inches, from the upper right corner.

(E) The document shall not have any attachment stapled or otherwise affixed to any page. The aggregate fee for recording an irregular document shall not be less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(6) Blanket recordings. For any document that makes specific reference to more than 5 tax parcels or property identification numbers, or makes reference to 5 or more document numbers, the aggregate fee shall be not less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge). A county may adopt by ordinance and publish with its fee schedule an additional fee or formula for each parcel, property identification number, or document reference, above 5, contained in an accepted document.

(7) Miscellaneous. The aggregate fee for recording documents not otherwise falling within classifications under paragraphs (1) through (6) and are not otherwise exempted documents shall not be less than \$31 (being a minimum \$13 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(d) For recording maps or plats of additions, subdivisions, or otherwise (including the spreading of the same of record in well bound books), \$100 plus \$2 for each tract, parcel, or lot contained in the map or plat.

(e) Documents presented that meet the following criteria shall be charged as otherwise provided by law or ordinance:

(1) a document recorded pursuant to the Uniform Commercial Code; or

(2) a State lien or a federal lien.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section: (i) the maximum fee that may be collected from the Department of Revenue for filing or indexing a lien, certificate of lien release or subordination, or any other type of notice or other documentation affecting or concerning a lien is \$5; and (ii) the maximum fee that may be collected from the Department of Revenue for indexing each additional name in excess of one for any lien, certificate of lien release or subordination, or any other type of notice or other documentation affecting or concerning a lien is \$1.

(f) For certified and non-certified copies of records, the recorder and county may set a predictable fee for all copies that does not exceed the highest total recording fee in any established document classes, unless the copy fee is otherwise provided in statute or ordinance. The total fee for a certified copy of a map or plat of an addition, subdivision, or otherwise may not exceed \$200.

The fees allowed under this subsection apply to all records, regardless of when they were recorded, based on current recording fees. These predictable fees for certified and non-certified copies shall apply to portions of documents and to copies provided in any format, including paper, microfilm, or electronic. A county may adopt a per-line pricing structure for copies of information in database format.

(g) As provided under subsection (c), the recorder shall collect an \$18 Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge for the recordation of any real estate-related document. Payment of the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge shall be evidenced by a receipt that shall be marked upon or otherwise affixed to the real estate-related document by the recorder. The form of this receipt shall be prescribed by the Department of Revenue and the receipts shall be issued by the Department of Revenue to each county recorder.

The recorder shall not collect the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge from any State agency, unit of local government, or school district.

On the 15th day of each month, each county recorder shall report to the Department of Revenue, on a form prescribed by the Department, the number of real estate-related documents recorded for which the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge was collected. Each recorder shall submit \$18 of each surcharge collected in the preceding month to the Department of Revenue and the Department shall deposit these amounts in the Rental Housing Support Program Fund. Subject to appropriation, amounts in the Fund may be expended only for the purpose of funding and administering the Rental Housing Support Program.

As used in this subsection, "real estate-related document" means that term as it is defined in Section 7 of the Rental Housing Support Program Act.

(55 ILCS 5/3-5019) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5019)

Sec. 3-5019. Monthly list of conveyances. Immediately following each calendar month, the recorder, in counties with less than 1,000,000 inhabitants shall, upon their request, transmit copies of all documents, plats and deeds conveying real property to the county clerk, the county treasurer, the tax map department, the supervisor of assessments and the township assessor for which the office ~~he~~ shall be paid by the county the usual and customary fee charged by the recorder for furnishing such documents.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5020) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5020)

Sec. 3-5020. Information to accompany conveyance documents.

(a) In counties of the first and second class no recorder shall record any conveyance of real estate unless the conveyance contains the name and address of the grantee for tax billing purposes.

(b) In counties with 3,000,000 or more inhabitants, the county recorder shall not accept for filing any deed or assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust in a transaction which is exempt from filing a real estate transfer declaration under the provisions of Section 4 of the Real Estate Transfer Tax Act, unless the deed or assignment of a beneficial interest is accompanied by,

(1) a sworn or affirmed statement executed by the grantor or the grantor's ~~his~~ agent stating that, to the best of the grantor's or the grantor's agent's ~~his~~ knowledge, the name of the grantee shown on the deed or assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust is either a natural person, an Illinois Corporation or foreign corporation authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in Illinois, a partnership authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in Illinois, or

other entity recognized as a person and authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate under the laws of the State of Illinois, and

(2) a sworn or affirmed statement executed by the grantee or the grantee's ~~his~~ agent verifying that the name of the grantee shown on the deed or assignment of beneficial interest in a land trust is either a natural person, an Illinois corporation or foreign corporation authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in Illinois, a partnership authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate in Illinois, or other entity recognized as a person and authorized to do business or acquire and hold title to real estate under the laws of the State of Illinois. Any person who knowingly submits a false statement required under this Section concerning the identity of a grantee is guilty of a Class C misdemeanor. A second or subsequent conviction of such offense is a Class A misdemeanor.

(c) In the event that the document of conveyance is a trustee's deed issued under resignation by a land trustee, the statements pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (2) of subsection (b) shall not be required, but the trustee's deed shall instead be accompanied by a sworn or affirmed statement executed by the grantor land trustee stating that the trustee's deed has been issued pursuant to resignation by the trustee, and that the name of the grantee shown on the trustee's deed is the name of the beneficiary of the trust as the trustee's ~~his~~ name appears in the trust files as of the date of resignation.

(Source: P.A. 86-962; 87-543; 87-1236.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5020.5)

Sec. 3-5020.5. Information concerning recorded or filed instruments. Each instrument recorded or filed with the county recorder must contain the following:

(1) The name and address of the person to whom the instrument is to be returned.

(2) The recorder's document number of any instrument (i) referred to in the instrument being recorded or filed or (ii) relating to the instrument being recorded or filed, such as, without limitation, the recorder's document number of a mortgage when the instrument being recorded or filed is a release of that mortgage.

(3) The book and page number, if applicable, or document number of any instrument (i) referred to in the instrument being recorded or filed or (ii) relating to the instrument being recorded or filed.

(Source: P.A. 88-691, eff. 1-24-95.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5021) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5021)

Sec. 3-5021. Recording or registering instruments transferring title to real estate or a beneficial interest in real estate subject to a land trust. If any home rule municipality has levied a real estate transfer tax and a certified copy of the ordinance or resolution levying the tax, specifying the rates and the design and denomination of stamps evidencing payment thereof, has been on file with the county recorder for at least 30 days, the recorder of that county may not accept for recording or for registration ~~under "An Act concerning land titles", approved May 1, 1897, as amended,~~ any instrument transferring title to real estate in that municipality, or the beneficial interest in real estate in that municipality which is the subject of a land trust, for which revenue stamps are required to be purchased ~~under the "Real Estate Transfer Tax Act", approved July 17, 1967, as amended,~~ without proof of payment of the municipal real estate transfer tax.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5024) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5024)

Sec. 3-5024. Certificate of time of filing. When any instrument in writing is recorded in the recorder's office, the recorder shall indorse upon such instrument a certificate of the time (including the hour of the day) when the same was accepted received for recordation (which shall be considered the time of recording the same), and the book and page or document number by and in which the same is recorded. The recorder shall sign the certificate or shall affix the recorder's ~~his~~ facsimile signature thereto. A physical or electronic image of the recorder's stamp satisfies the signature requirement for recorded instruments prior to, on, and after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 102nd General Assembly.

The certificate, when signed by the recorder, or to which the recorder ~~he~~ has affixed the recorder's ~~his~~ facsimile signature or a physical or electronic image of the recorder's stamp, shall be evidence of the facts therein stated.

(Source: P.A. 102-838, eff. 5-13-22.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5025) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5025)

Sec. 3-5025. Books. Every recorder shall keep the following books or computer databases:

1. An entry book, in which the recorder ~~he or she~~ shall, immediately on the receipt of any instrument to be recorded or filed, enter, in the order of its reception, the names of the parties thereto,

its date, the day of the month, hour and year of receiving the same, and a brief description of the premises, indorsing upon each instrument a number corresponding with the number of such entry.

2. A grantor's index, in which shall be entered the name of each grantor, in alphabetical order, the name of the grantee, date of the instrument, time of receipt, kind of instrument, consideration, the book and page in which it is recorded, or the number under which it is filed, and a brief description of the premises.

3. A grantee's index, in which shall be entered the name of each grantee, in alphabetical order, the name of the grantor, date of the instrument, time of receipt, kind of instrument, consideration, the book and page in which it is recorded, or the number under which it is filed, and a brief description of the premises.

4. An index to each book or computer database of record, in which shall be entered, in alphabetical order, the name of each grantor and grantee, and the page number in which or reference number to which the instrument is recorded.

5. When required by the county board, an abstract book, which shall show by tracts every conveyance or incumbrance recorded, the date of the instrument, time of filing the same, the book and page where the same is recorded; which book shall be so kept as to show a true chain of title to each tract and the incumbrances thereon, as shown by the records of the his office.

6. An index to recorded maps, plats and subdivisions, such index to be made by description of land mapped, or subdivided by range, township, Section, quarter-section, etc.

7. An index showing in alphabetical order the names of the parties against whom judgments have been rendered or made and transcripts or memoranda of such judgments have been recorded, and the parties named in notices recorded pursuant to Section 1 of "An Act concerning constructive notice of condemnation proceedings, proceedings to sell real property of decedents to pay debts, or other suits seeking equitable relief involving real property, and proceedings in bankruptcy" approved June 11, 1917, as amended.

8. An index of all ordinances, petitions, assessment rolls, orders, judgments or other documents filed or recorded in respect of any drainage or special assessment matter sufficient to enable the public to identify all tracts involved therein and to locate all the documents which have been filed or recorded. The recorder may solicit the assistance of the State Records Commission in organizing and indexing these documents.

Any recorder may install or contract for the use of a computerized system that will permit automated entry and indexing, alphabetically by document, of instruments filed in the his or her office and that will provide both quick search and retrieval of such entries and hard copy print output, whether on paper, optical disk media, or microfilm, of such entries as indexed. If such a computerized system has been in use in the his or her office for at least 6 months and the recorder determines that it provides accurate and reliable indices that may be stored as permanent records, more quickly and efficiently than the system previously used, the recorder may thereafter discontinue the use of the manual system and use only the computerized system for such indices. In that event, references in this Division to books, records or forms as relate to such indices are intended to encompass and refer to the computer system and all materials and forms directly related to that system and its proper use.

This Section is subject to the Local Records Act.

(Source: P.A. 88-661, eff. 9-16-94.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5029) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5029)

Sec. 3-5029. Map, plat or subdivision of land; penalty. No person shall offer or present for recording or record any map, plat or subdivision of land situated in any incorporated city, town or village, nor within 1 1/2 miles of the corporate limits of any incorporated city, town or village which has adopted a city plan and is exercising the special powers authorized by Division 12 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, as now or hereafter amended, and not included in any municipality unless the map, plat or subdivision is under the seal of a registered Illinois land surveyor and unless it is entitled to record as provided in Sections 11-15-1 and 11-12-3 of the Illinois Municipal Code, as now or hereafter amended. Any map, plat or subdivision of land presented for recording shall have attached thereto or endorsed thereon the Certificate of an Illinois Registered Land Surveyor that the land is or is not within any incorporated city, town or village, nor within 1 1/2 miles of the corporate limits of any incorporated city, town or village which has adopted a city plan and is exercising the special powers authorized by Division 12 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, as now or hereafter amended, and not included in any municipality. No person shall offer or present for recording or record any subdivision plat of any lands bordering on or including any public

waters of the State in which the State of Illinois has any property rights or property interests, unless such subdivision plat is under the seal of a registered Illinois Land Surveyor and is approved by the Department of Natural Resources, nor shall any person offer or present for recording or record any map, plat or subdivision of lands, without indicating whether any part of which as shown on the map, plat or subdivision is located within a special flood hazard area as identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency nor shall any person offer or present for recording or record any map, plat or subdivision of land situated outside any incorporated city, town or village unless the map, plat or subdivision is under the seal of a registered Illinois land surveyor, and unless it is entitled to record as provided in Section 5-1045, however, the provisions of this Section shall not apply to any street or highway survey map or plat. Any person who records, or who offers or presents for recording, which offer or presentation results in a recording of, any map, plat or subdivision of land which the person ~~he~~ knows to be in violation of this Section shall pay to the county the sum of ~~\$1,000~~ \$200, to be recovered in the circuit court, in the name of the state, for the use of the county, with costs of suit.

(Source: P.A. 89-445, eff. 2-7-96.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5031) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5031)

Sec. 3-5031. Penalty. If any recorder shall willfully fail to perform any duty imposed upon the recorder ~~him~~ by this Division, the recorder ~~he~~ shall be guilty of malfeasance in office, and shall be punished accordingly, and shall be liable to the party injured for all damages occasioned thereby.

(Source: P.A. 95-877, eff. 1-1-09.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5033) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5033)

Sec. 3-5033. County to furnish books, equipment and supplies. The county board of each county shall from time to time, as may be necessary, provide the recorder of such county with well-bound and properly ruled books, and where photostating, optical disk storage, or microfilming is used, the recorder shall likewise be furnished all such equipment (such as computers, printers, and scanners) and supplies necessary to the execution of the duties of the his office. They may procure books of printed forms to be filled up in the recording of any instrument, when the same may be done without interlineation or erasure, and shall in all cases, when practicable, procure the necessary index and abstract books with printed headings. The cost of such books, equipment and supplies shall be chargeable against the surplus fees of the office, or paid by the county.

(Source: P.A. 88-661, eff. 9-16-94.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5036.5)

Sec. 3-5036.5. Exchange of information for child support enforcement.

(a) The recorder ~~Recorder~~ shall exchange with the Department of Healthcare and Family Services information that may be necessary for the enforcement of child support orders entered pursuant to the Illinois Public Aid Code, the Illinois Marriage and Dissolution of Marriage Act, ~~the Non-Support of Spouse and Children Act~~, the Non-Support Punishment Act, ~~the Revised Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act~~, the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act, ~~the Illinois Parentage Act of 1984~~, or the Illinois Parentage Act of 2015.

(b) Notwithstanding any provisions in this Code to the contrary, the recorder ~~Recorder~~ shall not be liable to any person for any disclosure of information to the Department of Healthcare and Family Services ~~(formerly Illinois Department of Public Aid)~~ under subsection (a) or for any other action taken in good faith to comply with the requirements of subsection (a).

(Source: P.A. 99-85, eff. 1-1-16.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5037) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5037)

Sec. 3-5037. Instruments to be re-recorded; fee; penalty. In all cases where the records of any county have been or shall hereafter be destroyed by fire or other casualty, it shall be the duty of the recorder of such county to re-record all deeds, mortgages or other instruments in writing which may have been recorded or filed for record prior to the destruction of such records, together with the certificates of such original recording, that may be filed in the his office for re-recording; and the recorder may charge and receive, as a fee for re-recording such deeds, mortgages and other instruments aforesaid, and the certificate of such recording, 5¢ for each 100 words or fractions thereof, and no more; and any recorder who shall charge a greater fee than the foregoing, or who shall refuse to re-record such instruments in writing, for the fee aforesaid, shall be deemed guilty of malfeasance in office, and subject to all the penalties prescribed by law for such offense.

(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5038) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5038)

Sec. 3-5038. Judgment dockets. In all counties where a recorder is elected in which the recorder has heretofore been, or shall hereafter be required by the county board to keep abstract books showing by tract every conveyance or incumbrance recorded, the date of the instrument, the time of filing same, the book and page where the same is recorded, and showing a true chain of title to each tract and the incumbrances thereon, as shown by the records of the his office, such recorder shall ~~and he is hereby authorized to~~ keep judgment dockets and indexes thereto, showing all judicial proceedings affecting title to real estate in such county, tax sale books with indexes thereto, showing sales or forfeitures of all lands in the county for unpaid taxes and assessments, and such other books as are usual or necessary to be kept for the purpose of making complete abstracts of title to real estate; and the county board shall furnish such recorder with the necessary rooms, books, stationery, fuel and lights for the purposes herein set forth: Provided, that nothing in this Division shall be construed to empower the recorder to prevent the public from examining and taking memoranda from all records and instruments filed for record, indexes and other books in the recorder's his official custody, but it shall be the recorder's his duty at all times, when the his office is or is required by law to be open, to allow all persons without fee or reward to examine and take memoranda from the same. This Section is subject to the provisions of the "The Local Records Act".
(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5045) (from Ch. 34, par. 3-5045)

Sec. 3-5045. Scope of liability in connection with Uniform Commercial Code. No recorder nor any of the recorder's his employees or agents shall be subject to personal liability by reason of any error or omission in the performance of any duty under Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code except in case of willful ~~willful~~ negligence.
(Source: P.A. 86-962.)

(55 ILCS 5/4-12002.3 new)

Sec. 4-12002.3. Predictable fee schedule for recordings in third class counties.

(a) The fees of the recorder in counties of the third class for recording deeds or other instruments in writing and maps of plats of additions, subdivisions, or otherwise and for certifying copies of records shall be paid in advance and shall conform to this Section. The fees or surcharges shall not, unless otherwise provided in this Section, be based on the individual attributes of a document to be recorded, including, but not limited to, page count; number, length, or type of legal descriptions; number of tax identification or other parcel-identifying code numbers; number of common addresses; number of references contained as to other recorded documents or document numbers; or any other individual attribute of the document. The fees charged under this Section shall be inclusive of all county and State fees that the county may elect or is required to impose or adjust, including, but not limited to, GIS fees, automation fees, document storage fees, and the Rental Housing Support Program State and county surcharges.

(b) A county of the third class shall adopt and implement, by ordinance or resolution, a predictable fee schedule as provided in subsection (c) that eliminates surcharges or fees based on the individual attributes of a document to be recorded. If a county has previously adopted an ordinance or resolution adopting a predictable fee schedule, the county must adopt an ordinance or resolution revising that predictable fee schedule to be consistent with this Section. After a document class predictable fee is approved by a county board consistent with this Section, the county board may, by ordinance or resolution, increase the document class predictable fee and collect the increased fees if the established fees are not sufficient to cover the costs of providing the services related to the document class for which the fee is to be increased.

For the purposes of the fee charged, the ordinance or resolution shall divide documents into the classifications specified in subsection (c), and shall establish a single, all-inclusive county and State-imposed aggregate predictable fee charged for each classification of document at the time of recording for that document. Each document, unless otherwise provided in this Section, shall fall within one of the document class predictable fee classifications set by subsection (c), and fees for each document class shall be charged only as allowed by this Section.

Before approval of an ordinance or resolution under this subsection that creates or modifies a predictable fee schedule, the recorder or county clerk shall post a notice in the recorder's or clerk's office at least 2 weeks prior, but not more than 4 weeks prior, to the public meeting at which the ordinance or resolution may be adopted. The notice shall contain the proposed ordinance or resolution number, if any, the proposed document class predictable fees for each classification, and a reference to this Section and this amendatory Act of the 103rd General Assembly. A predictable fee schedule takes effect 60 days after an ordinance or resolution is adopted, unless the fee schedule was previously created and the ordinance or resolution is a modification allowed under this Section.

Nothing in this Section precludes a county board from adjusting amounts or allocations within a given document class predictable fee when the document class predictable fee is not increased or precludes an alternate predictable fee schedule for electronic recording within each of the classifications under subsection (c).

If the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge is amended and the surcharge is increased or lowered, the aggregate amount of the document predictable fee attributable to the surcharge in the document may be changed accordingly. If any fee or surcharge is changed by State statute, the county may increase the document class fees by the same amount without any cost study.

(c) A predictable fee schedule ordinance or resolution adopted under this Section shall list document fees, including document class predictable fees. The document classes shall be as follows:

(1) Deeds. The aggregate fee for recording deeds shall not be less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge). Inclusion of language in the deed as to any restriction; covenant; lien; oil, gas, or other mineral interest; easement; lease; or a mortgage shall not alter the classification of a document as a deed.

(2) Leases, lease amendments, and similar transfer of interest documents. The aggregate fee for recording leases, lease amendments, and similar transfers of interest documents shall not be less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(3) Mortgages. The aggregate fee for recording mortgages, including assignments, extensions, amendments, subordinations, and mortgage releases shall not be less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(4) Easements not otherwise part of another classification. The aggregate fee for recording easements not otherwise part of another classification, including assignments, extensions, amendments, and easement releases not filed by a State agency, unit of local government, or school district, shall not be less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(5) Irregular documents. Any document presented that does not conform to the following standards, even if it may qualify for another document class, may be recorded under this document class (5) if the irregularity allows a legible reproduction of the document presented:

(A) The document shall consist of one or more individual sheets measuring 8.5 inches by 11 inches, not permanently bound, and not a continuous form. Graphic displays accompanying a document to be recorded that measure up to 11 inches by 17 inches shall be recorded without charging an additional fee.

(B) The document shall be legibly printed in black ink by hand, type, or computer. Signatures and dates may be in contrasting colors if they will reproduce clearly.

(C) The document shall be on white paper of not less than 20-pound weight and shall have a clean margin of at least one-half inch on the top, the bottom, and each side. Margins may be used only for non-essential notations that will not affect the validity of the document, including, but not limited to, form numbers, page numbers, and customer notations.

(D) The first page of the document shall contain a blank space, measuring at least 3 inches by 5 inches, from the upper right corner.

(E) The document shall not have any attachment stapled or otherwise affixed to any page.

The aggregate fee for recording an irregular document shall not be less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(6) Blanket recordings. For any document that makes specific reference to more than 5 tax parcels or property identification numbers, or makes reference to 5 or more document numbers, the aggregate fee shall be not less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge). A county may adopt by ordinance and publish with its fee schedule an additional fee or formula for each parcel, property identification number, or document reference, above 5, contained in an accepted document.

(7) Miscellaneous. The aggregate fee for recording documents not otherwise falling within classifications under paragraphs (1) through (6) and are not otherwise exempted documents shall not be less than \$39 (being a minimum \$21 county fee plus \$18 for the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge).

(d) For recording maps or plats of additions, subdivisions, or otherwise (including the spreading of the same of record in well bound books), \$100 plus \$2 for each tract, parcel, or lot contained in the map or plat.

(e) Documents presented that meet the following criteria shall be charged as otherwise provided by law or ordinance:

(1) a document recorded pursuant to the Uniform Commercial Code; or

(2) a State lien or a federal lien.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section: (i) the maximum fee that may be collected from the Department of Revenue for filing or indexing a lien, certificate of lien release or subordination, or any other type of notice or other documentation affecting or concerning a lien is \$5; and (ii) the maximum fee that may be collected from the Department of Revenue for indexing each additional name in excess of one for any lien, certificate of lien release or subordination, or any other type of notice or other documentation affecting or concerning a lien is \$1.

(f) For recording any document that affects an interest in real property, other than documents which solely affect or relate to an easement for water, sewer, electricity, gas, telephone, or other public service, the recorder shall charge a minimum fee of \$1 per document to all filers of documents not filed by any State agency, any unit of local government, or any school district. Half of the fee shall be deposited into the county general revenue fund. The remaining half shall be deposited into the County Recorder Document Storage System Fund and may not be appropriated or expended for any other purpose. The additional amounts available to the recorder for expenditure from the County Recorder Document Storage System Fund shall not offset or reduce any other county appropriations or funding for the office of the recorder.

(g) For certified and non-certified copies of records, the recorder and county may set a predictable fee for all copies that does not exceed the highest total recording fee in any established document classes, unless the copy fee is otherwise provided in statute or ordinance. The total fee for a certified copy of a map or plat of an addition, subdivision, or otherwise may not exceed \$200.

The fees allowed under this subsection apply to all records, regardless of when they were recorded, based on current recording fees. These predictable fees for certified and non-certified copies shall apply to portions of documents and to copies provided in any format, including paper, microfilm, or electronic. A county may adopt a per-line pricing structure for copies of information in database format.

(h) As provided under subsection (c), the recorder shall collect an \$18 Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge for the recordation of any real estate-related document. Payment of the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge shall be evidenced by a receipt that shall be marked upon or otherwise affixed to the real estate-related document by the recorder. The form of this receipt shall be prescribed by the Department of Revenue and the receipts shall be issued by the Department of Revenue to each county recorder.

The recorder shall not collect the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge from any State agency, unit of local government, or school district.

On the 15th day of each month, each county recorder shall report to the Department of Revenue, on a form prescribed by the Department, the number of real estate-related documents recorded for which the Rental Housing Support Program State surcharge was collected. Each recorder shall submit \$18 of each surcharge collected in the preceding month to the Department of Revenue and the Department shall deposit these amounts in the Rental Housing Support Program Fund. Subject to appropriation, amounts in the Fund may be expended only for the purpose of funding and administering the Rental Housing Support Program.

As used in this subsection, "real estate-related document" means that term as it is defined in Section 7 of the Rental Housing Support Program Act.

(55 ILCS 5/4-12003) (from Ch. 34, par. 4-12003)

Sec. 4-12003. Fees of county clerk in third class counties. The fees of the county clerk in counties of the third class are:

For issuing each civil union or marriage license, sealing, filing and recording the same and the certificate thereto (one charge), a fee to be determined by the county board of the county, not to exceed \$75, which shall be the same, whether for a civil union or marriage license. \$5 from all civil union and marriage license fees shall be remitted by the clerk to the State Treasurer for deposit into the Domestic Violence Fund.

For taking, certifying to and sealing the acknowledgment of a deed, power of attorney, or other writing, \$1.

For filing and entering certificates in case of estrays, and furnishing notices for publication thereof (one charge), \$1.50.

For recording all papers and documents required by law to be recorded in the office of the county clerk, \$2 plus 30¢ for every 100 words in excess of 600 words.

[March 24, 2023]

For certificate and seal, not in a case in a court whereof he is clerk, \$1.

For making and certifying a copy of any record or paper in his office, \$2 for every page.

For filing papers in his office, 50¢ for each paper filed, except that no fee shall be charged for filing a Statement of economic interest pursuant to the Illinois Governmental Ethics Act or reports made pursuant to Article 9 of The Election Code.

For making transcript of taxable property for the assessors, 8¢ for each tract of land or town lot. For extending other than State and county taxes, 8¢ for each tax on each tract or lot, and 8¢ for each person's personal tax, to be paid by the authority for whose benefit the transcript is made and the taxes extended. The county clerk shall certify to the county collector the amount due from each authority for such services and the collector in his settlement with such authority shall reserve such amount from the amount payable by him to such authority.

For adding and bringing forward with current tax warrants amounts due for forfeited or withdrawn special assessments, 8¢ for each lot or tract of land described and transcribed.

For computing and extending each assessment or installment thereof and interest, 8¢ on each description; and for computing and extending each penalty, 8¢ on each description. These fees shall be paid by the city, village, or taxing body for whose benefit the transcript is made and the assessment and penalties are extended. The county clerk shall certify to the county collector the amount due from each city, village or taxing body, for such services, and the collector in his settlement with such taxing body shall reserve such amount from the amount payable by him to such city, village or other taxing body.

For cancelling certificates of sale, \$4 for each tract or lot.

For making search and report of general taxes and special assessments for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of redemption from sales or forfeitures or withdrawals or for use in the preparation of estimate of cost of purchase of forfeited property, or for use in preparation of order on the county collector for searches requested by buyers at annual tax sale, for each lot or tract, \$4 for the first year searched, and \$2 for each additional year or fraction thereof.

For preparing from tax search report estimate of cost of redemption concerning property sold, forfeited or withdrawn for non-payment of general taxes and special assessments, if any, \$1 for each lot or tract.

For certificate of deposit for redemption, \$4.

For preparing from tax search report estimate of and order to county collector to receive amount necessary to redeem or purchase lands or lots forfeited for non-payment of general taxes, \$3 for each lot or tract.

For preparing from tax search report estimate of and order to county collector to receive amount necessary to redeem or purchase lands or lots forfeited for non-payment of special assessments, \$4 for each lot or tract.

For issuing certificate of sale of forfeited property, \$10.

For noting on collector's warrants tax sales subject to redemption, 20¢ for each tract or lot of land, to be paid by either the person making the redemption from tax sale, the person surrendering the certificate of sale for cancellation, or the person taking out tax deed.

For noting on collector's warrant special assessments withdrawn from collection 20¢ for each tract or lot of land, to be charged against the lot assessed in the withdrawn special assessment when brought forward with current tax or when redeemed by the county clerk. The county clerk shall certify to the county collector the amount due from each city, village or taxing body for such fees, each year, and the county collector in his settlement with such taxing body shall reserve such amount from the amount payable by him to such taxing body.

For taking and approving official bond of a town assessor, filing and recording same, and issuing certificate of election or qualification to such official or to the Secretary of State, \$10, to be paid by the officer-elect.

For certified copies of plats, 20¢ for each lot shown in copy, but no charge less than \$4.

For tax search and issuing Statement regarding same on new plats to be recorded, \$10.

For furnishing written description in conformity with permanent real estate index number, \$2 for each written description.

The following fees shall be allowed for services in matters of taxes and assessments, and shall be charged as costs against the delinquent property, and collected with the taxes thereon:

For entering judgment, 8¢ for each tract or lot.

For services in attending the tax sale and issuing certificates of sale and sealing the same, \$10 for each tract or lot.

For making list of delinquent lands and town lots sold, to be filed with the State Comptroller, 10¢ for each tract or lot sold.

The following fees shall be audited and allowed by the board of county commissioners and paid from the county treasury.

For computing State or county taxes, on each description of real estate and each person's, firm's or corporation's personal property tax, for each extension of each tax, 4¢, which shall include the transcribing of the collector's books.

For computing, extending and bringing forward, and adding to the current tax, the amount due for general taxes on lands and lots previously forfeited to the State, for each extension of each tax, 4¢ for the first year, and for computing and extending the tax and penalty for each additional year, 6¢.

For making duplicate or triplicate sets of books, containing transcripts of taxable property, for the board of assessors and board of review, 3¢ for each description entered in each book.

For filing, indexing and recording or binding each birth, death or stillbirth certificate or report, 15¢, which fee shall be in full for all services in connection therewith, including the keeping of accounts with district registrars.

For posting new subdivisions or plats in official atlases, 25¢ for each lot.

For compiling new sheets for atlases, 20¢ for each lot.

For compiling new atlases, including necessary record searches, 25¢ for each lot.

For investigating and reporting on each new plat, referred to county clerk, \$2.

For attending sessions of the board of county commissioners thereof, \$5 per day, for each clerk in attendance.

For recording proceedings of the board of county commissioners, 15¢ per 100 words.

For filing papers which must be kept in office of comptroller of Cook County, 10¢ for each paper filed.

For filing and indexing contracts, bonds, communications, and other such papers which must be kept in office of comptroller of Cook County, 15¢ for each document.

For swearing any person to necessary affidavits relating to the correctness of claims against the county, 25¢.

For issuing warrants in payment of salaries, supplies and other accounts, and all necessary auditing and bookkeeping work in connection therewith, 10¢ each.

The fee requirements of this Section do not apply to units of local government or school districts.

The fees listed in this Section apply only when a county board has not adjusted them by ordinance or otherwise set by law.

(Source: P.A. 97-4, eff. 5-31-11.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5017 rep.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5018 rep.)

(55 ILCS 5/3-5018.1 rep.)

(55 ILCS 5/4-12002 rep.)

(55 ILCS 5/4-12002.1 rep.)

Section 10. The Counties Code is amended by repealing Sections 3-5017, 3-5018, 3-5018.1, 4-12002, and 4-12002.1.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect January 1, 2024."

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

READING BILLS OF THE SENATE A THIRD TIME

On motion of Senator Fine, **Senate Bill No. 49** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 37; NAYS 10.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Gillespie	Martwick	Stadelman
Belt	Glowiak Hilton	Morrison	Turner, D.
Castro	Halpin	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Cunningham	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Curran	Johnson	Porfirio	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Faraci	Koehler	Rezin	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Simmons	
Fine	Loughran Cappel	Sims	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	DeWitte	Rose	Turner, S.
Bennett	Fowler	Syverson	
Chesney	Plummer	Tracy	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Fine, **Senate Bill No. 57** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Martwick	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	McClure	Stoller
Belt	Gillespie	McConchie	Syverson
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	Morrison	Tracy
Bryant	Halpin	Murphy	Turner, D.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Pacione-Zayas	Turner, S.
Cervantes	Holmes	Peters	Ventura
Chesney	Hunter	Plummer	Villa
Cunningham	Johnson	Porfirio	Villanueva
Curran	Joyce	Preston	Villivalam
DeWitte	Koehler	Rezin	Wilcox
Edly-Allen	Lewis	Rose	
Faraci	Lightford	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Loughran Cappel	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Fine, **Senate Bill No. 58** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS 2.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Sims
Belt	Fowler	Martwick	Stadelman
Bennett	Gillespie	McClure	Stoller
Bryant	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Tracy
Castro	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, D.
Cervantes	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Turner, S.
Chesney	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Ventura
Cunningham	Hunter	Peters	Villa
Curran	Johnson	Porfirio	Villanueva
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rezin	Wilcox
Faraci	Lewis	Rose	Mr. President
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Simmons	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson
Plummer

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Peters, **Senate Bill No. 74** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 37; NAYS 17.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Glowiak Hilton	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Belt	Halpin	Martwick	Turner, D.
Castro	Holmes	Morrison	Ventura
Cervantes	Hunter	Murphy	Villa
Cunningham	Johnson	Pacione-Zayas	Villanueva
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Peters	Villivalam
Faraci	Joyce	Porfirio	Mr. President
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Preston	
Fine	Lewis	Simmons	
Gillespie	Lightford	Sims	

[March 24, 2023]

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	DeWitte	Plummer	Tracy
Bennett	Fowler	Rezin	Wilcox
Bryant	Harriss, E.	Rose	
Chesney	McClure	Stoller	
Curran	McConchie	Syverson	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Fine, **Senate Bill No. 86** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 55; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Sims
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Stadelman
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Stoller
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Syverson
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Tracy
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Turner, D.
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Turner, S.
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Ventura
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villa
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Villanueva
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rezin	Wilcox
Faraci	Lewis	Rose	Mr. President
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Simmons	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Feigenholtz, **Senate Bill No. 724** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 54; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Martwick	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	McClure	Stoller
Belt	Gillespie	McConchie	Syverson
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	Morrison	Tracy
Bryant	Halpin	Murphy	Turner, D.

Castro	Harriss, E.	Pacione-Zayas	Turner, S.
Cervantes	Holmes	Peters	Ventura
Chesney	Hunter	Plummer	Villa
Cunningham	Johnson	Porfirio	Villanueva
Curran	Jones, E.	Preston	Villivalam
DeWitte	Joyce	Rezin	Wilcox
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	Mr. President
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Loughran Cappel	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Morrison, **Senate Bill No. 759** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 54; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Sims
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Stadelman
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Syverson
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Tracy
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, D.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Turner, S.
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Ventura
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villa
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villanueva
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Villivalam
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Wilcox
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rezin	Mr. President
Faraci	Lewis	Rose	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Simmons	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Rose, **Senate Bill No. 1065** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.

[March 24, 2023]

Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Fowler, **Senate Bill No. 1360** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Gillespie, **Senate Bill No. 1478** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Aquino	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Belt	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bennett	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Bryant	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura

Castro	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Cervantes	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Chesney	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Cunningham	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
Curran	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
DeWitte	Koehler	Rose	
Edly-Allen	Lewis	Simmons	
Faraci	Lightford	Sims	
Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

Senator Feigenholtz asked and obtained unanimous consent for the Journal to reflect her intention to have voted in the affirmative on **Senate Bill No. 1478**.

On motion of Senator Lewis, **Senate Bill No. 1485** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Martwick	Syverson
Aquino	Fowler	McClure	Tracy
Belt	Gillespie	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	Morrison	Turner, S.
Bryant	Halpin	Murphy	Ventura
Castro	Harriss, E.	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Cervantes	Holmes	Peters	Villanueva
Chesney	Hunter	Plummer	Villivalam
Cunningham	Johnson	Porfirio	Wilcox
Curran	Jones, E.	Preston	Mr. President
DeWitte	Joyce	Rose	
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Simmons	
Faraci	Lightford	Sims	
Feigenholtz	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

Senator Lewis asked and obtained unanimous consent for the Journal to reflect his intention to have voted in the affirmative on **Senate Bill No. 1485**.

On motion of Senator Bennett, **Senate Bill No. 1534** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
----------	------	-----------------	-----------

[March 24, 2023]

Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Cunningham, **Senate Bill No. 1543** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Fine	Lightford	Simmons
Belt	Fowler	Loughran Cappel	Sims
Bennett	Gillespie	Martwick	Stadelman
Bryant	Glowiak Hilton	McClure	Tracy
Castro	Halpin	McConchie	Turner, D.
Cervantes	Harriss, E.	Morrison	Turner, S.
Chesney	Holmes	Murphy	Ventura
Cunningham	Hunter	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Curran	Johnson	Peters	Villanueva
DeWitte	Jones, E.	Plummer	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Joyce	Porfirio	Wilcox
Faraci	Koehler	Preston	Mr. President
Feigenholtz	Lewis	Rose	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Murphy, **Senate Bill No. 1558** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson

Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Lightford, **Senate Bill No. 1570** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 42; NAYS 11.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Glowiak Hilton	Martwick	Stadelman
Belt	Halpin	McConchie	Syverson
Castro	Harriss, E.	Morrison	Turner, D.
Cervantes	Holmes	Murphy	Turner, S.
Cunningham	Hunter	Pacione-Zayas	Ventura
DeWitte	Johnson	Peters	Villa
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Villanueva
Faraci	Joyce	Preston	Villivalam
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Rose	Mr. President
Fine	Lightford	Simmons	
Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Sims	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	Chesney	Lewis	Tracy
Bennett	Curran	McClure	Wilcox
Bryant	Fowler	Plummer	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Joyce, **Senate Bill No. 1611** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Fine, **Senate Bill No. 1673** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 34; NAYS 17.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Sims
Belt	Halpin	Martwick	Turner, D.
Castro	Holmes	Morrison	Ventura
Cervantes	Hunter	Murphy	Villa
Cunningham	Johnson	Pacione-Zayas	Villanueva
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Peters	Villivalam
Faraci	Joyce	Porfirio	Mr. President
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Preston	
Fine	Lightford	Simmons	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	DeWitte	McConchie	Turner, S.
Bennett	Fowler	Plummer	Wilcox
Bryant	Harriss, E.	Rose	
Chesney	Lewis	Syverson	
Curran	McClure	Tracy	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Halpin, **Senate Bill No. 1748** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 35; NAYS 16; Present 1.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Sims
Belt	Halpin	Martwick	Stadelman
Castro	Holmes	Morrison	Turner, D.
Cervantes	Hunter	Murphy	Ventura
Cunningham	Johnson	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Peters	Villanueva
Faraci	Joyce	Porfirio	Villivalam
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Preston	Mr. President
Fine	Lightford	Simmons	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	DeWitte	Plummer	Wilcox
Bennett	Fowler	Rose	
Bryant	Lewis	Syverson	
Chesney	McClure	Tracy	
Curran	McConchie	Turner, S.	

The following voted present:

Glowiak Hilton

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Holmes, **Senate Bill No. 1883** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 43; NAYS 9.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Gillespie	Lightford	Sims
Belt	Glowiak Hilton	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Castro	Halpin	Martwick	Tracy
Cervantes	Harriss, E.	McClure	Turner, D.
Cunningham	Holmes	Morrison	Turner, S.
Curran	Hunter	Murphy	Ventura
Edly-Allen	Johnson	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Faraci	Jones, E.	Peters	Villanueva
Feigenholtz	Joyce	Porfirio	Villivalam
Fine	Koehler	Preston	Mr. President
Fowler	Lewis	Simmons	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	Chesney	Rose
----------	---------	------

[March 24, 2023]

Bennett	McConchie	Syverson
Bryant	Plummer	Wilcox

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Halpin, **Senate Bill No. 1924** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 45; NAYS 5.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fowler	Lightford	Stadelman
Aquino	Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Tracy
Belt	Glowiak Hilton	Martwick	Turner, D.
Castro	Halpin	McClure	Turner, S.
Cervantes	Harriss, E.	Morrison	Ventura
Cunningham	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Curran	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
DeWitte	Johnson	Porfirio	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Preston	Mr. President
Faraci	Joyce	Rose	
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Simmons	
Fine	Lewis	Sims	

The following voted in the negative:

Bryant	McConchie	Wilcox
Chesney	Plummer	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Simmons, **Senate Bill No. 2014** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam

Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Villa, **Senate Bill No. 2034** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 44; NAYS 6.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Fine	Lewis	Stadelman
Belt	Fowler	Lightford	Turner, D.
Bennett	Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Turner, S.
Bryant	Glowiak Hilton	Martwick	Ventura
Castro	Halpin	Morrison	Villa
Cervantes	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Villanueva
Chesney	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villivalam
Cunningham	Hunter	Peters	Mr. President
DeWitte	Johnson	Porfirio	
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Preston	
Faraci	Joyce	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Sims	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	Plummer	Tracy
Curran	Rose	Wilcox

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Belt, **Senate Bill No. 2059** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura

[March 24, 2023]

Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Mr. President
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Villivalam, **Senate Bill No. 2192** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Villa, **Senate Bill No. 2197** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Aquino	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Belt	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bennett	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Bryant	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Castro	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa

Cervantes	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	
Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Lightford, **Senate Bill No. 2243** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Peters, **Senate Bill No. 2264** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura

[March 24, 2023]

Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator McClure, **Senate Bill No. 2356** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Lightford, **Senate Bill No. 2374** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 41; NAYS 7.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Belt	Glowiak Hilton	Martwick	Tracy
Castro	Halpin	McConchie	Turner, D.
Cervantes	Holmes	Morrison	Ventura
Cunningham	Hunter	Murphy	Villa
Curran	Johnson	Pacione-Zayas	Villanueva

DeWitte	Jones, E.	Peters	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Joyce	Porfirio	Mr. President
Faraci	Koehler	Preston	
Feigenholtz	Lewis	Simmons	
Fine	Lightford	Sims	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	Fowler	Rose	Wilcox
Chesney	Plummer	Syverson	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

Senator Anderson asked and obtained unanimous consent for the Journal to reflect his intention to have voted in the affirmative on **Senate Bill No. 2374**.

On motion of Senator Pacione-Zayas, **Senate Bill No. 2391** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfirio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator D. Turner, **Senate Bill No. 2406** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Fine	Loughran Cappel	Stadelman
Aquino	Fowler	Martwick	Syverson

[March 24, 2023]

Belt	Gillespie	McClure	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	McConchie	Turner, D.
Bryant	Halpin	Morrison	Turner, S.
Castro	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cervantes	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Chesney	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
Cunningham	Johnson	Plummer	Villivalam
Curran	Jones, E.	Porfrio	Wilcox
DeWitte	Joyce	Preston	Mr. President
Edly-Allen	Koehler	Rose	
Faraci	Lewis	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Lightford	Sims	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

On motion of Senator Villivalam, **Senate Bill No. 2426** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 45; NAYS 6.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Aquino	Fowler	Lightford	Syverson
Belt	Gillespie	Loughran Cappel	Tracy
Bennett	Glowiak Hilton	Martwick	Turner, D.
Castro	Halpin	McConchie	Turner, S.
Cervantes	Harriss, E.	Murphy	Ventura
Cunningham	Holmes	Pacione-Zayas	Villa
Curran	Hunter	Peters	Villanueva
DeWitte	Johnson	Porfrio	Villivalam
Edly-Allen	Jones, E.	Preston	Mr. President
Faraci	Joyce	Simmons	
Feigenholtz	Koehler	Sims	
Fine	Lewis	Stadelman	

The following voted in the negative:

Anderson	Chesney	Rose
Bryant	Plummer	Wilcox

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

At the hour of 12:26 o'clock p.m., Senator Lightford, presiding.

READING BILL OF THE SENATE A SECOND TIME

On motion of Senator Aquino, **Senate Bill No. 1977** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

[March 24, 2023]

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Judiciary, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 1977

AMENDMENT NO. 1 . Amend Senate Bill 1977 on page 2, by deleting lines 13 through 15; and on page 2, line 16, by replacing "(5)" with "(4)"; and on page 2, line 18, by replacing "(6)" with "(5)"; and on page 2, line 22, by replacing "(7)" with "(6)".

Floor Amendment No. 2 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS ON SECRETARY'S DESK

Senator Fine moved that **Senate Resolution No. 84**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.

Senator Fine moved that Senate Resolution No. 84 be adopted.

The motion prevailed.

And the resolution was adopted.

Senator McConchie moved that **Senate Resolution No. 89**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.

Senator McConchie moved that Senate Resolution No. 89 be adopted.

The motion prevailed.

And the resolution was adopted.

PRESENTATION OF CELEBRATION OF LIFE RESOLUTION

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 153

Offered by Senator Morrison and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Bruce Howard Balonick.

By unanimous consent, the foregoing resolution was referred to the Resolutions Consent Calendar.

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

SENATE BILL NO. 2554. Introduced by Senator Sims, a bill for AN ACT concerning appropriations.

The bill was taken up, read by title a first time, ordered printed and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

CELEBRATION OF LIFE RESOLUTION CONSENT CALENDAR

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 131

Offered by Senator Morrison and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Edmond Zisook.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 132

Offered by Senator S. Turner and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of retired Lincoln Police Corporal, former Lincoln Chief of Police, and current Logan County Sheriff's Office Court Security Officer Robert J. "Bob" Rawlins of Lincoln, who died in the line of duty due to a medical emergency while providing security at the Logan County Courthouse.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 133

Offered by Senator Koehler and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Owen Lindsey of Centralia, formerly of Peoria.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 137

Offered by Senator McClure and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Alice Joanne (Spring) Roderick of Springfield.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 138

Offered by Senator McClure and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Benjamin Joseph "Ben" Theilen of Springfield.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 139

Offered by Senator McClure and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Frank Peter Albanese of Springfield.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 140

Offered by Senator McClure and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Susan L. Cane of Springfield.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 141

Offered by Senator Murphy and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Betty W. Henneman of Chicago.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 143

Offered by Senator Ventura and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Judith A. "Judy" Martin of Joliet.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 144

Offered by Senator McClure and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Ann (O'Malley) Moore of Chicago.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 145

Offered by Senator McClure and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Robert P. Cappelli.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 146

Offered by Senator Castro and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Austin Keating of Streamwood.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 149

Offered by Senator D. Turner and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Dorothy Mae Johnson of Springfield.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 150

Offered by Senator Plummer and all Senators:

Mourns the death of JC Kowa of Olney.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 151

Offered by Senator Pacione-Zayas and all Senators:

Mourns the death of Ruben Olivares of Chicago.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 153

Offered by Senator Morrison and all Senators:

Mourns the passing of Bruce Howard Balonick.

The Chair moved the adoption of the Resolutions Consent Calendar.

The motion prevailed, and the resolutions were adopted.

LEGISLATIVE MEASURES FILED

The following Floor amendments to the Senate Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 40
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 67
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 183
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 203
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 247
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 328
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 333
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 757
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 761
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 805
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 849
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 850
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 855
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 990
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 993
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 994
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1066
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1128
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1148
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1150
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1160
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1210
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1211
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1212
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1250
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1438
 Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 1446
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1474
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1495
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1499
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1508
 Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 1515
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1646
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1685
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1721
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1741
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1745
 Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 1769
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1803
 Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1817
 Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1892

[March 24, 2023]

Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1960
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1979
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1996
Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 2031
Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 2039
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2044
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2121
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2212
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2213
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2223
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2240
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2278
Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 2354
Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 2368
Amendment No. 4 to Senate Bill 2368
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2417

The following Committee amendments to the Senate Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 90
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 147
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 218
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1864
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2038
Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 2337

At the hour of 12:33 o'clock p.m., the Chair announced that the Senate stands adjourned until Tuesday, March 28, 2023, at 12:00 o'clock p.m.